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Dear Coastal Carolina Bancshares Shareholders,

L E T T E R T O O U R S H A R E H O L D E R S

As I begin this letter, it is with a sense
of pride that I reflect on how well our
Bank performed in 2018 and how far
we’ve come in a relatively short 
period. This June marks CCNB’s 
tenth year of serving our communities.
Since 2012, our bank has grown 
from one branch to seven, serving
South Carolina’s Grand Strand, 
the Midlands, and now the Upstate
with the advent of our newest branch 
in downtown Greenville. A sturdy 
underlying foundation has been set,
and we are committed to staying true
to our continued course of responsible
growth. Our Bank’s consistently solid
financial performance mirrors our
team’s dedication to providing 
impeccable service to our customers.
Guided by CCNB’s core values —
Teamwork, Passion, Integrity, and 
Accountability — and fueled by our
team's 'We Can Do That’ mindset, 
our Bank continues its positive 
momentum as we head with 
confidence into the future. 

As of December 31, 2018, total 
consolidated assets grew to $379 
million compared to $327 million
at December 31, 2017 (15.7%).  
Total loans grew 15.9% to $288 
million at December 31, 2018, 
compared to $248 million at 
December 31, 2017. Total deposits
grew 19.6% to $327 million at 
December 31, 2018, compared to
$273 million at December 31, 2017.
Our consolidated net income 
totaled $2,115,485 for the twelve
months ended December 31, 
2018, compared to $323,732 at 

December 31, 2017, a significant
achievement in a year that included
costs associated with our expansion
into a new market. At December 31,
2018, we remained a well-capitalized
financial institution. 

We just completed a banner year 
in 2018 which was the most 
profitable year in our Bank’s history.
We experienced double-digit 
percentage growth in assets, 
deposits, and loans, largely in 
part due to our team’s 
unwavering pursuit of excellence, 
our consumer-focused strategy, and
our Bank’s expansion into the upstate. 

In May of this year, we opened 
our seventh location at 416 E. North
Street in downtown Greenville. This
full-service branch is conveniently 
located to serve the commercial, 
mortgage lending, and personal 
banking needs of this vibrant and 
desirable market. Thanks to our
Greenville team’s dedication, local
market know-how, and enthusiasm,
we are off to an impressive start and
look forward to making a positive 
impact in the Greenville community. 

We continue to strengthen our brand
equity across all the communities 
we serve by sponsoring a wide 
assortment of community and 
charitable events to increase brand
awareness. Our efforts are supported
by a robust, multi-faceted marketing
plan that utilizes diverse delivery
channels to keep CCNB top-of-mind
and expand our customer base.  

To further deepen our brand 
awareness and complement our 
efforts in the upstate, on February 1,
2019, we announced a three-year
agreement to name the City of 
Simpsonville’s outdoor entertainment
facility at Heritage Park, the "CCNB
Amphitheatre." The CCNB Amphithe-
atre — which accommodates 15,000
guests  — is host to premier perform-
ers, musicians, and a wide array of
community events attracting concert-
goers from across the Southeast. 
We look forward to our new partner-
ship with the City of Simpsonville and
the wealth of branding opportunities it 
provides. This partnership illustrates
our resolve to serving the upstate
community for years to come. 

We continue to expand the suite of
products and services we offer to 
both retail and commercial customers. 
This year we launched ICS® – Insured
Cash Sweep® which offers customers
access to multi-million-dollar FDIC 
insurance. This product contributed
significantly to our deposit growth 
in 2018 and allowed us to offer 
meaningful financial solutions to our
clients. With this year’s enhancements
to our Treasury Services, CCNB is 
furnishing our business customers
with a consultative approach to 
managing cash flow with a timely, 
high level of service that only a 
community bank can provide. 
This blending of strengths, 
interdepartmental collaboration, 
and continued focus on our 
customers were key contributors 
to our success this year. 
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Laurence S. Bolchoz, Jr.
President/CEO
March 15, 2019

CONWAY IS ON THE MOVE
Corner of 9TH Avenue and Main Street,

Downtown Conway

On the technology front, we made
several upgrades to enhance our 
customers' electronic banking 
experience. We rebranded our 
business online banking platform to
make transactions more seamless, 
efficient, and secure. We added
mobile deposit capture for businesses
allowing our business customers to
deposit checks remotely. Now our
business customers can experience
the same timesaving conveniences
our personal banking customers 
currently enjoy. Although electronic
banking popularity continues to rise,
CCNB remains intent upon providing
impeccable personalized service that
our customers still want and deserve. 

I am very happy to announce we have
broken ground on a new permanent
branch location in downtown Conway
at the corner of 9th Avenue and Main
Street. This full-service branch will
feature a drive-up window and 
ATM to better serve the Conway 
community. Our new branch is slated
to open later this year. Despite 
unfavorable logistics, and significant 
weather-related issues in the 4th 
quarter due to Hurricane Florence, 
our core values and our Bank’s 
culture remained resolute in the face
of challenge. The Conway team 
experienced record-breaking results 
in 2018. I am incredibly proud of 
our entire team and the resiliency of
our neighbors in Horry County who 
suffered tremendously due to 
Hurricane Florence and the resulting
floods.  I am grateful CCNB was able
to offer assistance to our customers

who were impacted by the storm 
further bolstering my confidence 
that we have the best team in place 
to achieve positive results, grow 
prosperously, and continue to 
be good stewards of the 
communities we serve. 

As you’re about to see from the 
enclosed financial report, this is an 
exciting time for CCNB and we urge
you to consider establishing a banking
relationship with us if you haven’t
done so already.  Please share your
experience at CCNB with your family
and friends, and let me know if I can
ever be of assistance to you. Although
we are consistently rated five stars by
BauerFinancial® Inc, we are always
looking for ways to improve and, 
we remain steadfast in our dedication 
to serving you better. That’s the
CCNB difference we hope 
you can experience for yourself.

Thank you for your investment in
Coastal Carolina Bancshares, Inc. 
We hope you can attend our 
Annual Meeting of Shareholders on
Wednesday, May 22 beginning at 
5:30 p.m. at The Dunes Golf & 
Beach Club in Myrtle Beach. 

Sincerely,
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Douglas P. 
Wendel,
Chairman,
CCNB
Board
Consultant

Benjy A.
Hardee
President 
and Chief 
Executive 
Officer, 
A.O. Hardee 
and Son, Inc.

Dennis T. 
Worley
Wright, 
Worley, Pope,
Ekster & 
Moss, PLLC

Marilyn B. 
Hatley,
Secretary,
CCNB
North Myrtle 
Beach Mayor

Edward K.
Woltz
President and
Owner, Sutton
Marine, LLC
President and 
Owner, The 
Precision 
Group, Inc.

Carl O. 
Falk
Partner,
Falk Holdings, 
LLC

Gary L. 
Hadwin
President 
and Owner,
Hadwin-White 
Pontiac-Buick-
GMAC Trucks-
Subaru

C O A S T A L C A R O L I N A B A N C S H A R E S ,  I N C .
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Henrietta U.
Golding,
Treasurer,
CCNB &
CCB, Inc.
Partner,
Burr & 
Forman, LLP

W. John 
Laymon
Director of 
Residential 
Real Estate,
The Jackson 
Companies

Clark D.
Moore,
M.D.
Orthopedic 
Surgeon,
Owner, 
Carolina
Orthopedics,
Aiken, SC

Marsha W.
Griffin,
Secretary,
CCB, Inc.
President,
Marsha 
Griffin & 
Associates, 
LLC

Dennis L.
Wade, 
Chairman
CCB, Inc.
Board
President 
and Chief 
Executive 
Officer,
The Jackson 
Companies

Stephan C. 
Ouverson
Managing 
Partner,
Parsons, 
Ouverson, 
Stark, Guest 
& Sandefur 
P. A.

Laurence S. 
Bolchoz, Jr.
President and Chief 
Executive Officer, 
Coastal Carolina 
National Bank

A N D C C N B B O A R D O F D I R E C T O R S
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Glenn H. Hall
President, National Finance 
Company, Inc.

Lawrence B. Holt, Jr., M.D.
Retired Physician

Drayton R. Honeycutt, 
CPA, CDFA
Owner, The Honeycutt 
Group CPA, PC

Joe Reaves, III
Owner, 
Car City/Sun Coast 
Financial

Michael F. Riley
President, Better Brands, Inc.

Carl F. Sloan, M.D.
Ophthalmologist, 
Coastal Eye Group

Diane D. Stokes
President, Stages 
Video Productions, Inc.

R. Tracy Turner
Broker Associate, 
ReMax Ocean Forest

W. Stovall Witte
President/CEO, Coastal
Educational Foundation

C O A S TA L A D V I S O RY B O A R D M E M B E R S

Brian Argo
Conway Medical Center 

Sivanthan Balachandran, M.D.
Coastal Kidney Center

Forrest B. Beverly
Beverly Homes

Dr. M. Reece Cofer
Coastal Carolina Oral & 
Maxillofacial Surgery

Rev. James H. Cokley, DMin 
Cherry Hill Missionary Baptist Church

Keith M. Collins
Manager, Bucksport Water System

William M. Goldfinch IV, AAMS
Goldfinch Financial Group

Natasha M. Hanna
Law Office of 
Natasha M. Hanna, P.C.

Patrick T. Hooks, CPA/ABV
Smith Sapp CPA Firm

Jeffrey W. Horowitz, DMD
Carolina Center for Advanced Dentistry

Kimberly Courtney
President, Carolina Pavement Markings

Chris Sansbury
Century 21 McAlpine 
Broker-In-Charge

C O N WAY A D V I S O RY B O A R D M E M B E R S

Edward C. Brohl
Consultant

W. Marsh Burckhalter, Jr.
Consultant

Norman L. Dunagan
Dumpster Depot

Charles R. Fliflet
Charles R. Fliflet, CPA, PA

Charles V. Hartz
Dunkin Donuts

Nini Patheja, M.D.
Aiken Ophthalmology

Donna J. Taylor
Meybohm Realtors

James R. Watts II
Family Pharmacy

Charlotte C. Wiedenman
Charlotte C. Wiedenman, DMD LLC

A I K E N A D V I S O RY B O A R D M E M B E R S
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Laurence S. Bolchoz, Jr.
President and
Chief Executive Officer

Dawn M. Kinard
Executive Vice President
Chief Financial Officer

Jeremy Baird
Senior Vice President
Director of Strategy & Services

Scott A. Benninga
Senior Vice President
Mortgage Banking Director

David L. Brunko
Senior Vice President
Mortgage Sales Manager

Kevin Hagen
Senior Vice President
Director of Treasury 
Services

Steve Hales
Senior Vice President
Aiken City Executive
Mortgage Sales Manager

Christine Houston
Senior Vice President
Chief Credit Officer

Robert P. Hucks, II
Senior Vice President
North Strand 
Market Executive

W. David Keller
Senior Vice President
Midlands Market Executive 

Jimmy Kimbell
Senior Vice President
Upstate Market Executive 

Justin M. Lee
Senior Vice President
Chief Lending Officer

Allison P. Stout
Senior Vice President
Controller

Robert S. Sunday
Senior Vice President
Retail Operations Director

Ginger Allen
Vice President
Mortgage Underwriting 
Manager

Gina Antonicello
Vice President
Mortgage Operations 
Manager

Bob Bigger
Vice President, Commercial
Relationship Manager

Liz Buffkin
Vice President
Mortgage Loan Officer

Becky Cooley
Vice President
Mortgage Loan Officer

Austin Cox
Vice President
Credit Administration Officer

Linda Dickinson
Vice President
Loan Operations Manager

Stephanie S. English
Vice President
South Strand City Executive

Casey Goodrich
Vice President
Commercial Relationship 
Manager

Megan Jacobsen
Vice President
Mortgage Loan Officer

Robin Jeter
Vice President
Mortgage Loan Officer

Clinton McKinney
Vice President
Greenville City Executive

Amy Rogers
Vice President
Compliance Specialist

Gary Staley
Vice President
Mortage Loan Officer

Beth Turner
Vice President
Columbia Branch 
Manager

Maura L. Utley
Vice President
Director of Marketing 

Bert Williams
Vice President
Mortgage Loan Officer

Brad Crain
Assistant Vice President
Aiken Branch Manager

Karen J. Keilen
Assistant Vice President
Deposit Operations 
Manager

Kirsten Kjos
Assistant Vice President
Myrtle Beach Branch 
Manager

Tommy Tomlinson
Assistant Vice President
Greenville Branch 
Manager

Terry S. Haight
Assistant Secretary

C C N B  O F F I C E R S
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Regina Taylor
Loan Documentation
Specialist

Robert S. Sunday
Senior Vice President
Retail Operations Director

CCNB acknowledges our 
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Independent Auditor’s Report

The Board of Directors
Coastal Carolina Bancshares, Inc.
Myrtle Beach, South Carolina

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Coastal Carolina Bancshares, Inc. and its subsidiary
which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, and the related consolidated statements
of operations and comprehensive income, changes in shareholders’ equity and cash flows for the years then ended and the
related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We conducted
our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such
opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Coastal Carolina Bancshares, Inc. and its subsidiary as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, and the results of its
operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Columbia, South Carolina
March 20, 2019

elliottdavis.com
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,
2018 2017

Assets
Cash and non interest-bearing due from banks $     4,270,786 $     3,841,594
Federal funds sold 967,268 200,237
Interest-bearing bank deposits 45,563,338 33,949,644

Total cash and cash equivalents 50,801,392 37,991,475
Securities available for sale 21,197,881 22,143,557
Federal Reserve Bank stock 1,232,000 1,219,900
Federal Home Loan Bank stock 548,800 682,600
Loans held for sale 1,468,764 1,086,500
Loans receivable 287,913,450 248,369,637
Deferred loan fees, net (118,705) (237,391)
Allowance for loan losses (2,389,716) (1,954,847)

Loans, net 285,405,029 246,177,399
Premises and equipment, net 8,316,222 7,811,352
Bank owned life insurance 2,329,544 2,262,805
Other Real Estate Owned - 88,513
Goodwill 2,991,535 2,991,535
Core Deposit Intangible 524,992 635,464
Deferred tax asset, net 2,261,301 2,745,209
Accrued interest receivable 1,052,361 868,611
Other Assets 589,569 550,801

Total assets $ 378,719,390 $ 327,255,721

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Liabilities

Deposits:
Non-interest bearing demand $   42,982,147 $ 33,525,449
Interest checking 29,099,333 26,562,983
Money market 122,919,097 91,818,918
Savings 6,501,236 6,477,814
Certificates of deposit 125,521,310 114,979,278

Total deposits 327,023,123 273,364,442
Advances from Federal Home Loan Bank 6,000,000 10,000,000
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 1,283,299 1,408,325

Total liabilities 334,306,422 284,772,767

Commitments and contingencies (Notes 7 and 18)
Shareholders’ Equity

Preferred stock, $.01 par value,
10,000,000 shares authorized, none issued and outstanding - -

Common stock, $.01 par value, 50,000,000 shares authorized, 5,592,617
issued and outstanding at December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017 55,926 55,926

Additional paid-in capital 46,431,086 46,431,086
Unearned compensation, nonvested restricted stock - (8,719)
Retained deficit (1,726,134) (3,841,605)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (347,910) (153,734)

Total shareholders’ equity 44,412,968 42,482,954
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $ 378,719,390 $ 327,255,721

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the Years Ended
December 31,

2018 2017
Interest income
    Loans, including fees                                                                                                                                          $   14,312,635             $   12,162,865
    Federal funds sold and interest-bearing bank deposits                                                                                                    701,910                       300,521 
    Securities                                                                                                                                                                    511,848                       478,694 
    Federal Reserve & Federal Home Loan stock dividend                                                                                                    116,510                         70,205 
        Total interest income                                                                                                                                           15,642,903                  13,012,285 
Interest expense
    Deposits:
        Interest checking                                                                                                                                                      106,485                         93,374 
        Money market and savings                                                                                                                                       952,148                       549,483 
        Certificates of deposit < $100,000                                                                                                                           567,129                       544,089 
        Certificates of deposit ≥ $100,000                                                                                                                         1,171,715                       763,772 
    Other borrowings                                                                                                                                                          188,924                       138,791 
        Total interest expense                                                                                                                                            2,986,401                    2,089,509 
Net interest income before provision for loan losses                                                                                                       12,656,502                  10,922,776 
Provision for loan losses                                                                                                                                                    461,420                       555,537 
Net interest income after provision for loan losses                                                                                                12,195,082                  10,367,239 
Noninterest income
    Service charges on deposits                                                                                                                                          121,225                       100,038 
    Gain on sale of loans                                                                                                                                                    889,415                    1,043,186 
    ATM, debit, and merchant fees                                                                                                                                      232,412                       188,563 
    Bank-owned life insurance                                                                                                                                              71,158                         79,405 
    Other                                                                                                                                                                          117,534                         95,594 
        Total noninterest income                                                                                                                                        1,431,744                    1,506,786 
Noninterest expense
    Salaries and employee benefits                                                                                                                                  6,588,321                    5,701,731 
    Data processing                                                                                                                                                        1,040,531                       997,947 
    Professional services                                                                                                                                                    299,101                       320,198 
    Occupancy and equipment                                                                                                                                         1,658,494                    1,451,144 
    Marketing and business development                                                                                                                            344,913                       248,577 
    Shareholder relations                                                                                                                                                      55,840                         46,756 
    Postage and supplies                                                                                                                                                    104,822                         97,288 
    Corporate insurance                                                                                                                                                       41,393                         41,203 
    Telecommunications                                                                                                                                                     128,187                       115,562 
    FDIC insurance and regulatory assessments                                                                                                                  239,765                       198,647 
    Other                                                                                                                                                                          420,170                       390,952 
        Total noninterest expense                                                                                                                                    10,921,537                    9,610,005
Income before income taxes                                                                                                                                     2,705,289                    2,264,020 
Income tax expense related to ordinary operations                                                                                                              589,818                       719,803 
Income tax expense related to change in tax rate                                                                                                                           -                    1,220,485 
        Total income tax expense                                                                                                                                          589,818                    1,940,288 
Net income                                                                                                                                                          $     2,115,471             $        323,732
Other comprehensive loss: 
    Net change in unrealized losses on securities available for sale                                                                             $       (257,374)            $          31,493
    Reclassification of other comprehensive loss due to tax rate change                                                                                           -                        (25,360) 
    Tax effect                                                                                                                                                                       63,198                        (11,651) 
        Total other comprehensive loss                                                                                                                                (194,176)                        (5,518) 
Comprehensive income                                                                                                                                      $     1,921,295            $        318,214
Earnings per share
Basic and diluted earnings per share                                                                                                                       $              0.38            $              0.07 
Average shares outstanding                                                                                                                                           5,592,617                    4,452,646

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Years Ended December 31, 2018 and 2017
                                                                                                                                            Unearned                                   Accumulated
                                                                                                                Additional      Compensation                                     Other                   Total
                                                                      Common Stock                    Paid-in            Nonvested           Retained      Comprehensive   Shareholders’
                                                                 Shares            Amount             Capital       Restricted Stock        Deficit         Income (Loss)          Equity
December 31, 2016                               3,282,426          $ 32,824       $ 30,923,398         $            -         $  (4,190,697)    $  (148,216)         $ 26,617,309
Net income                                                             -                      -                           -                        -                 323,732                      -                   323,732
Change in unrealized gains and losses
    on securities, net of taxes                                    -                      -                           -                        -                             -            19,842                    19,842
Common stock issuance, net                     2,310,191             23,102          15,507,473                       -                             -                      -              15,530,575
Reclassification of other
    comprehensive loss due to
    change in tax rate                                               -                      -                           -                        -                   25,360           (25,360)                             -
Restricted stock                                                      -                      -                           -               (8,719)                            -                      -                      (8,719)
Stock-based compensation                                      -                      -                      215                       -                             -                      -                          215
December 31, 2017 5,592,617 $ 55,926 $ 46,431,086 $   (8,719) $  (3,841,605) $  (153,734) $ 42,482,954

December 31, 2017                               5,592,617            55,926         46,431,086              (8,719)           (3,841,605)       (153,734)            42,482,954
Net income                                                             -                      -                           -                        -              2,115,471                      -                2,115,471
Change in unrealized gains and losses
    on securities, net of taxes                                    -                      -                           -                        -                             -         (194,176)                (194,176)
Restricted stock                                                      -                      -                           -                8,719                             -                       -                     8,719
December 31, 2018 5,592,617 $ 55,926 $ 46,431,086 $            - $  (1,726,134) $  (347,910) $ 44,412,968

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Years Ended
December 31,

2018 2017
Operating activities
Net income                                                                                                                                                            $     2,115,471             $        323,732
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities: 
    Provision for loan losses                                                                                                                                               461,420                       555,538 
    Amortization of intangible assets                                                                                                                                   110,472                       134,319 
    (Gain) loss on sale of other real estate owned                                                                                                                  13,003                          (2,700) 
    Gains on sale of loans held for sale                                                                                                                              (889,415)                 (1,043,186) 
    Origination of loans held for sale, net                                                                                                                       (32,220,183)               (35,475,718) 
    Proceeds from sale of loans held for sale                                                                                                                  32,727,334                  36,656,366 
    Premium amortization and discount accretion on securities, net                                                                                      158,448                       141,250 
    Depreciation and amortization expense                                                                                                                          497,148                      465,100 
    Stock-based compensation expense                                                                                                                                         -                             215 
    Decrease (increase) in restricted stock                                                                                                                               8,719                         (8,719) 
    Increase in accrued interest receivable                                                                                                                         (183,750)                    (137,714) 
    Increase (decrease) in accrued interest payable                                                                                                              (20,562)                       48,699
    Decrease in deferred tax asset                                                                                                                                      547,106                    1,896,891 
    Increase in cash surrender value of life insurance                                                                                                           (66,739)                      (69,337) 
    Increase in other assets                                                                                                                                                 (38,768)                      (85,749) 
    Increase (decrease) in other liabilities                                                                                                                           (203,066)                       69,260 
            Net cash provided by operating activities                                                                                                            3,016,638                    3,468,247 
Investing activities
    Net increase in loans                                                                                                                                              (39,662,499)               (33,124,839) 
    Purchases of securities available for sale                                                                                                                   (2,586,592)                 (6,568,226) 
    Proceeds from paydowns of securities available for sale                                                                                              3,188,497                    2,846,369 
    Redemption of Federal Reserve Bank stock                                                                                                                    (12,100)                    (704,050) 
    (Purchase) redemption of Federal Home Loan Bank stock                                                                                               133,800                      (321,900) 
    Purchases of premises and equipment                                                                                                                      (1,002,018)                    (216,904) 
    Proceeds from sale of other real estate owned                                                                                                                 75,510                       110,505 
    Proceeds from issuance of common stock, net                                                                                                                          -                  15,530,575 
            Net cash used by investing activities                                                                                                               (39,865,402)               (22,448,470) 
Financing activities
    Net increase in demand deposits, interest-bearing 
        transaction accounts and savings accounts                                                                                                           43,116,649                  24,990,548 
    Net increase (decrease) in certificates of deposit                                                                                                       10,542,032                   (5,971,855) 
    Repayment of other borrowings                                                                                                                                                -                   (4,500,000) 
    (Repayment) proceeds from Federal Home Loan Bank                                                                                                (4,000,000)                  9,000,000
            Net cash provided by financing activities                                                                                                           49,658,681                  23,518,693 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents                                                                                                             12,809,917                    4,538,470 
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year                                                                                                       37,991,475                  33,453,005 
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year                                                                                                             $   50,801,392             $   37,991,475
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information
Cash paid for:
    Interest                                                                                                                                                             $     2,965,839             $     1,960,254
    Income taxes                                                                                                                                                     $          52,406             $            7,300

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.



Fi n a n c i a l  R e p o r t 2018 |  9

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
NOTE 1 – ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization – On February 28, 2008, Coastal Carolina Bancshares, Inc. (the “Company”) was incorporated to act as the
holding company for Coastal Carolina National Bank (the “Bank”). The Bank began banking operations with one branch in
Myrtle Beach, SC on June 8, 2009. The bank subsequently established a branch in Garden City, SC in 2013, and established a
third branch in North Myrtle Beach, SC in 2015.

On October 8, 2016, Coastal Carolina National Bank merged with state-charted commercial bank VistaBank, headquartered in
Aiken, South Carolina. VistaBank operated three branches located across South Carolina in Conway, SC, Columbia, SC, and
Aiken, SC. All three locations continue operations post merger as Coastal Carolina National Bank locations.

In June 2017, the Bank opened a Loan Production Office in Greenville, SC. The Loan Production Office was closed and the
Bank established a full service branch in Greenville, SC in May 2018.

The principal business activity of the Bank is to provide banking services to domestic markets, principally serving Horry,
Georgetown, Aiken, Richland, Lexington, Greenville (SC), and Brunswick (NC) counties. The bank is a nationally-chartered
commercial bank and its deposits are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation.

Basis of Presentation – The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.

Principles of Consolidation - The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its subsidiary.
Significant intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenue and expense during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Material estimates that are particularly susceptible to significant change relate to the determination of the allowance for losses
on loans, fair value of securities, the valuation of deferred tax assets, and the estimated useful lives and methods for
depreciating premises and equipment. Management believes that the allowance for losses on loans is adequate. While
management uses available information to recognize losses on loans, future additions to the allowances may be necessary based
on changes in local economic conditions.

In addition, regulatory agencies, as an integral part of their examination process, periodically review the Company’s allowances
for losses on loans. Such agencies may require the Company to recognize additions to the allowance based on their judgments
about information available to them at the time of their examination. Because of these factors, it is reasonably possible that the
allowance for losses on loans may change materially in the near term.

Cash and Cash Equivalents – For purposes of reporting cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash and due from
banks, federal funds sold, and interest-bearing bank deposits. Generally, federal funds sold are for one-day periods.

Concentrations of Credit Risk – Financial instruments, which potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit
risk, consist principally of loans receivable, investment securities, federal funds sold, and amounts due from banks.

The Company’s loan portfolio consists of loans to individuals and businesses for various personal and commercial purposes
primarily in our respective markets. The Company could be subject to increased credit risk should economic conditions change
over the course of the loan lives. However, these loans are underwritten and monitored to manage the associated risks.
Additionally, the Company monitors potential concentrations of loans to particular borrowers or groups of borrowers,
industries and geographic regions, management monitors exposure to credit risk from concentrations of lending products and
practices such as loans that subject borrowers to substantial payment increases (e.g., principal deferral periods, loans with
initial interest-only periods, etc.), and loans with high loan-to-value ratios. Concentrations of credit risk are measured as a
percentage of Tier 1 capital plus the allowance for loan losses. Management is not aware of any concentrations of loans to
classes of borrowers or industries that could be affected by economic conditions, except construction and land development.

The Company’s investment portfolio consists principally of obligations of the United States and its agencies. In the opinion of
management, there is no concentration of credit risk in its investment portfolio.
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The Company places its deposits and correspondent accounts with and sells its federal funds to high-quality institutions. As of
December 31, 2018, the Company had $39.2 million on deposit at the Federal Reserve Bank, or 92.1% of the Company’s Tier 1
capital plus the allowance for loan losses. Additionally, the Company had $2.8 million, or 6.5% of the Company’s Tier 1 capital
plus the allowance for loan losses, with its primary correspondent bank, First National Bankers Bank. Management believes
credit risk associated with its primary and other correspondent banks is not significant based on an evaluation of their financial
statements and general knowledge of their operations.

Investment Securities – All debt securities are classified as available for sale and recorded at fair value with unrealized gains
and losses excluded from earnings and reported in other comprehensive income, net of the related deferred tax effect. The
Company intends to hold available for sale securities for an indefinite period of time, but may sell them prior to maturity in
response to changes in interest rates, changes in repayment risk, changes in the liquidity needs of the Bank, and other factors.
Purchase premiums and discounts are recognized in interest income using methods approximating the interest method over the
terms of the securities. 

A decline in the market value of any available for sale or held to maturity security below cost that is deemed other than
temporary results in a charge to earnings and the establishment of a new cost basis for the security. The fair value of securities 
is determined by a third party as of a date in the close proximity to the end of the reporting period. The valuation is based on
available quoted market prices or quoted market prices for similar securities if a quoted market price is not available. In
estimating other-than-temporary impairment losses, management considers (1) the length of time and the extent to which the
fair value has been less than cost, (2) the financial condition and near-term prospects of the issuer, and (3) the intent and 
ability of the Company to retain its investment in the issuer for a period of time sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery
in fair value. 

Realized gains and losses for securities are included in earnings, determined on the basis of cost of each specific security sold,
are included in earnings on the settlement date. 

Nonmarketable equity securities without a readily determinable fair value are reported at cost. As of December 31, 2018,
nonmarketable equity securities include the Bank’s investment in Federal Reserve Bank stock, Federal Home Loan Bank stock,
Community Bankers Bank Stock, and Dunes Club Stock. 

Loans and Loans Held for Sale – With the exception of purchased loans that are recorded at fair value on the date of
acquisition, loans receivable that management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future or until maturity or
pay-off are reported at their outstanding principal balance adjusted for any charge-offs, the allowance for loan losses, deferred
fees or costs on originated loans and unamortized premiums or discounts on purchased loans. Loans held for sale are carried at
the lower of the carrying amount or fair value applied on an aggregate basis. Fair value is measured based on purchase
commitments, bids received from potential purchasers, quoted prices for the same or similar loans, or prices of recent sales or
securitizations.

Conforming fixed-rate residential mortgage loans are typically classified as held for sale upon origination based upon
management’s intent to generally sell all of the production of these loans. Other types of loans may either be held for
investment purposes, sold, or securitized. Loans originated for the held for investment loan portfolio that are subsequently
transferred to held for sale based on management’s decision to sell are transferred at the lower of cost or fair value. 
Write-downs of the loans’ carrying value attributable to credit quality are charged to the allowance for loan losses while 
write-downs attributable to interest rates are charged to noninterest income. As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Bank had
$1,468,764 and $1,086,500, respectively, in loans held for sale. Loan fees are recognized when earned for loans originated with
the intent to sell.

Purchased loans resulting from business combination transactions are recorded at fair value on the date of acquisition. Some of
those purchased loans show evidence of credit deterioration since origination and are accounted for pursuant to ASC Topic
310-30, Loans and Debt Securities Acquired with Deteriorated Credit Quality. These purchased credit impaired (“PCI”) loans
are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of purchase. Over the life of the loan, expected cash flows continue to be
estimated. If the present value of expected cash flows is less than the carrying amount, a loss is recorded. If the present value of
expected cash flows is greater than the carrying amount, it is recognized as part of future interest revenue.

Interest income is recognized on an accrual basis. A portion of loan origination fees and certain direct costs are recognized
initially when the loan closes based on an estimate of the time spent by employees to originate the loan. The remaining
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amounts and unearned discounts are deferred and amortized into interest income as an adjustment to the yield over the term of
the loan. Loan commitment fees are generally deferred and amortized into fee income on a straight-line basis over the
commitment period. Other credit-related fees, including letter and line of credit fees are recognized as fee income when earned.
The determination to discontinue the accrual of interest is based on a review of each loan. Generally, accrual of interest is
discontinued on loans 90 days past due or when deemed not collectible in full as to principal or interest unless in management’s
opinion collection of both principal and interest is assured by way of collateralization, guarantees or other security and the loan
is in the process of collection. When interest accrual is discontinued, all unpaid accrued interest is reversed. Interest income is
subsequently recognized only to the extent cash payments are received. Loans are returned to accrual status when management
determines, based on an evaluation of the underlying collateral together with the borrower’s payment record and financial
condition, that the borrower has the ability and intent to meet the contractual obligations of the loan agreement. When the
ultimate collectability of the principal balance of an impaired loan is in doubt, all cash receipts are applied to principal. Once
the recorded principal balance has been reduced to zero, future cash receipts are recorded as recoveries of any amounts
previously charged off, and then to interest income to the extent any interest has been foregone.

Allowance for Loan Losses – The allowance for loan losses represents the Company’s recognition of the risks of extending
credit and its evaluation of the loan portfolio. The allowance for loan losses is maintained at a level considered adequate to
provide for probable loan losses based on management’s assessment of various factors affecting the loan portfolio, including a
review of problem loans, business conditions, historical loss experience, evaluation of the quality of the underlying collateral,
and holding and disposal costs. The allowance for loan losses is increased by provisions charged to expense and reduced by
loans charged off, net of recoveries. Loan losses are charged against the allowance for loan losses when management believes
the loan balance is uncollectible.

The allowance for loan losses calculation process has two components. The recorded allowance for loan losses is the aggregate
of these two components. The first component represents the estimated probable losses inherent within the general loan
portfolio based on CCNB historical experience and the historical experience of peers, adjusted for environmental conditions
such as uncertainties in economic conditions, trends in borrowers’ financial condition, delinquency trends, trends in lending,
results of internal and external loan reviews, and other factors. The second component represents the allowance for loan losses
for impaired loans. To determine this component, collateral dependent impaired loans are evaluated using internal analyses as
well as third-party information, such as appraisals. Impaired loans are evaluated using one of three methods; a discounted cash
flow of the payments expected over the life of the loan using the loan’s effective interest rate, the fair value of the collateral less
costs to sell, or the observable market price of the loan.

Loans purchased as a result of a business combination were purchased at fair value which accounted for any future credit losses.
Therefore, purchased loans are excluded from the general reserve calculation. A valuation allowance is established for these
loans when it is probable that the Company will be unable to collect all the cash flows expected at acquisition.

In situations where, for economic or legal reasons related to a borrower’s financial difficulties, a concession to the borrower is
granted that the Company would not otherwise consider, the related loan is classified as a troubled debt restructuring. The
restructuring of a loan may include the transfer from the borrower to the Company of real estate, receivables from third parties,
other assets, or an equity interest in the borrower in full or partial satisfaction of the loan, modification of the loan terms, or a
combination of the above.

Business Combinations and Method of Accounting for Loans Acquired – The Company accounts for its acquisitions under
FASB ASC Topic 805, “Business Combinations,” which requires the use of the acquisition method of accounting. All identifiable
assets acquired, including loans, are recorded at fair value. No allowance for loan losses related to the acquired loans is 
recorded on the acquisition date because the fair value of the loans acquired incorporates assumptions regarding credit risk.
Loans acquired are recorded at fair value in accordance with the fair value methodology prescribed in FASB ASC Topic 820,
“Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures.”

Acquired credit-impaired loans are accounted for under the accounting guidance for loans and debt securities acquired with
deteriorated credit quality, found in FASB ASC Topic 310-30, “Receivables—Loans and Debt Securities Acquired with Deteriorated 
Credit Quality,” formerly American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“AICPA”) Statement of Position (“SOP”) 03-3,
“Accounting for Certain Loans or Debt Securities Acquired in a Transfer,” and initially measured at fair value, which includes estimated
future credit losses expected to be incurred over the life of the loans. Loans acquired in business combinations with evidence of
credit deterioration since origination and for which it is probable that all contractually required payments will not be collected
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are considered to be credit impaired. Evidence of credit quality deterioration as of purchase dates may include information such
as past-due and nonaccrual status, borrower credit scores and recent loan to value percentages. The Company considers
expected prepayments and estimates the amount and timing of expected principal, interest and other cash flows for each loan
or pool of loans meeting the criteria above, and determines the excess of the loan’s scheduled contractual principal and
contractual interest payments over all cash flows expected to be collected at acquisition as an amount that should not be
accreted (nonaccretable difference). The remaining amount, representing the excess of the loan’s or pool’s cash flows expected
to be collected over the fair value for the loan or pool of loans, is accreted into interest income over the remaining life of the
loan or pool (accretable difference). Subsequent to the acquisition date, increases in cash flows expected to be received in
excess of the Company’s initial estimates are reclassified from nonaccretable difference to accretable difference and are accreted
into interest income on a level-yield basis over the remaining life of the loan. Decreases in cash flows expected to be collected
are recognized as impairment through the provision for loan losses.

Other Real Estate Owned – Real estate properties acquired through, or in lieu of, loan foreclosure are to be sold and are
initially recorded at fair value less estimated selling costs at the date of foreclosure establishing a new cost basis. After
foreclosure, valuations are periodically performed by management and the real estate is carried at the lower of carrying amount
or fair value less estimated costs to sell. As of December 31, 2018, the bank had no other real estate owned. As of December 31,
2017 other real estate owned amounted to $88,513, representing one property acquired during the merger with VistaBank.

Premises and Equipment – Premises and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation and
amortization of premises and equipment are computed using the straight-line method over the assets’ estimated useful lives.
Useful lives range from three to ten years for software, furniture and equipment, computer equipment, and automobile, and
over the shorter of the estimated useful lives or the term of the lease for leasehold improvements. Leasehold improvements are
amortized over the term of the lease. The cost of assets sold or otherwise disposed of and the related allowance for depreciation
is eliminated from the accounts and the resulting gains or losses are reflected in the income statement when incurred.
Maintenance and repairs are charged to current expense. The costs of major renewals and improvements are capitalized based
upon the Company’s policy.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets – Goodwill represents the cost in excess of fair value of net assets acquired (including
identifiable intangibles) in purchase transactions. Core deposit intangible assets represent premiums paid for acquisitions of
core deposits (core deposit intangibles). Core deposit intangibles are being amortized over a twenty year period based on
amortization schedules prepared by an outside consultant. Goodwill and identifiable intangible assets are reviewed for
impairment annually or whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying amount of an asset may not be
recoverable. Recoverability of identifiable intangible assets is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of the asset to
future undiscounted cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. The Company’s evaluation considers various
components, to include economic conditions, industry considerations, and financial performance as well as other information.
No impairment losses have been recorded as a result of the Company’s analysis during the year ended December 31, 2018.

Bank Owned Life Insurance – The carrying value of bank owned life insurance represents the cash value of policies on certain
current and former officers of the Company.

Stock-based Compensation – The Company accounts for stock-based compensation to employees as outlined in the
accounting standards. The cost of employee services received in exchange for an award of equity instruments is based on the
grant-date fair value of the award. A Black-Scholes model is used to estimate the fair value of stock options, while the market
price of the Company’s common stock at the date of grant is used to estimate the fair value of restricted stock. Compensation
cost is recognized over the required service period, generally defined as the vesting period for stock option awards and the
restriction period for restricted stock awards. For awards with graded vesting, compensation cost is recognized on a straight-
line basis over the requisite service period for the entire award. Compensation expense is recognized net of awards expected to
be forfeited.

Income Taxes – Deferred tax assets and liabilities will be recognized for the future tax benefits or consequences attributable to
differences between the book and tax bases of the various balance sheet assets and liabilities and gives current recognition to
changes in tax rates and laws. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates will be recognized in
income in the period that includes the enactment date. Management’s determination of the realization of deferred tax assets is
based upon management’s judgment of various future events, including the timing, nature, and amount of future income.



Fi n a n c i a l  R e p o r t 2018 |  13

An evaluation of the probability of being able to realize the future benefits indicated by any such deferred tax asset is required.
A valuation allowance is provided for the deferred tax asset when it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the
deferred tax asset will not be realized. In assessing the realizability of the deferred tax assets, management will consider the
scheduled reversals of deferred tax liabilities, projected future taxable income, and tax planning strategies. As of December 31,
2018, management concluded that only a small valuation allowance was necessary.

Comprehensive Income – Accounting principles generally require that recognized revenue, expenses, gains and losses be
included in net income. However, certain changes in assets and liabilities, such as unrealized gains and losses on available-for-
sale securities, are reported as a separate component of the shareholders’ equity section of the balance sheet. Such items, along
with net income, are components of comprehensive income.

Earnings Per Share – Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing net earnings by the weighted average number of shares
of common stock outstanding. Diluted earnings per share are computed by dividing net income by the sum of the weighted
average number of shares of common stock outstanding and potential common shares. Potential common shares consist of
stock options, restricted stock, and warrants.

Financial Instruments – In the ordinary course of business, the Company enters into off balance sheet financial instruments
consisting of commitments to extend credit, commercial letters of credit, and standby letters of credit. Such financial
instruments are recorded in the financial statements when they become payable.

Risks and Uncertainties – In the normal course of its business, the Company encounters two significant types of risks:
economic and regulatory. There are three main components of economic risk: interest rate risk, credit risk and market risk. The
Company is subject to interest rate risk to the degree that its interest-bearing liabilities mature or reprice at different speeds, or
on different basis, than its interest-earning assets. Credit risk is the risk of default on the Company’s loan portfolio that results
from borrower’s inability or unwillingness to make contractually required payments. Market risk reflects changes in the value of
collateral underlying loans receivable and the valuation of real estate held by the Company.

The Company is subject to the regulations of various governmental agencies. These regulations can and do change significantly
from period to period. The Company also undergoes periodic examinations by the regulatory agencies, which may subject it to
further changes with respect to asset valuations, amounts of required loss allowances and operating restrictions from the
regulators’ judgments based on information available to them at the time of their examination.

Liabilities for Representations and Warranties – The Company is exposed to certain liabilities under representations and
warranties made to purchasers of mortgage loans and servicing rights that require indemnification or repurchase of loans. At the
time it issues a guarantee, the Company incurs a liability for the fair value of obligations assumed under the guarantee.

The liability for representations and warranties provided to purchasers of its mortgage loans and servicing rights creates the
need for a contingency reserve. This reserve is maintained at a level considered appropriate by management to provide
adequately for known and inherent losses. The reserve is based upon a continuing review of past loss experience, estimates and
assumptions of risk elements and future economic conditions. Additions to the reserve would be recorded in other expenses.

Management’s judgment about the adequacy of the reserve is based upon a number of assumptions about future events which it
believes to be reasonable but which may or may not be accurate. There is no assurance that additional increases in the reserve
will not be required. The Company many from time-to-time be required to repurchase loans previously sold to investors due to
loan nonperformance. At December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Company had no general reserve recorded for potential
indemnifications to other third-party purchasers based on management’s analysis.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements – The following is a summary of recent authoritative pronouncements that affect the
Company’s accounting, reporting, and disclosure of financial information:

In May 2014, the FASB issued guidance to change the recognition of revenue from contracts with customers. The core principle
of the new guidance is that an entity should recognize revenue to reflect the transfer of goods and services to customers in an
amount equal to the consideration the entity receives or expects to receive. The guidance was effective for the Company for
reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2017. The Company applied the guidance using a modified retrospective
approach. The Company’s revenue is comprised of net interest income and noninterest income. The scope of the guidance
explicitly excludes net interest income as well as many other revenues for financial assets and liabilities including loans, leases,
securities, and derivatives. Accordingly, the majority of our revenues will not be affected.
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The Company has performed an assessment of our revenue contracts related to revenue streams that are within the scope of the
standard. Our accounting policies will not change materially since the principles of revenue recognition from the ASU are
largely consistent with existing guidance and current practices applied by our businesses. We did not identify material changes
to the timing or amount of revenue recognition. The Company records revenue from contracts with customers in accordance
with Accounting Standards Codification Topic 606, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” (“Topic 606”). Under Topic 606,
the Company must identify the contract with a customer, identify the performance obligations in the contract, determine the
transaction price, allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract, and recognize revenue when (or
as) the Company satisfies a performance obligation. Significant revenue has not been recognized in the current reporting period
that results from performance obligations satisfied in previous periods.

The Company’s primary sources of revenue are derived from interest and dividends earned on loans, investment securities, and
other financial instruments that are not within the scope of Topic 606. The Company has evaluated the nature of its contracts
with customers and determined that further disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers into more granular
categories beyond what is presented in the consolidated statements of operations was not necessary. The Company generally
fully satisfies its performance obligations on its contracts with customers as services are rendered and the transaction prices are
typically fixed; charged either on a periodic basis or based on activity. Our accounting policies will not change materially since
the principles of revenue recognition form the Accounting Standards Update are largely consistent with existing guidance and
current practices applied by our business.

In February 2016, the FASB amended the Leases topic of the Accounting Standards Codification to revise certain aspects of
recognition, measurement, presentation, and disclosure of leasing transactions. The amendments will be effective for fiscal
years beginning after December 15, 2018, including interim periods within those fiscal years. Early adoption is permitted.

We expect to adopt the guidance using the modified retrospective method and practical expedients for transition. The practical
expedients allow us to largely account for our existing leases consistent with current guidance except for the incremental
balance sheet recognition for lessees. We have started an initial evaluation of our leasing contracts and activities. We have also
started developing our methodology to estimate the right-of use assets and lease liabilities, which is based on the present value
of lease payments (the December 31, 2018 future minimum lease payments were $2,234,939). We do not expect a material
change to the timing of expense recognition, but we are early in the implementation process and will continue to evaluate the
impact. We are evaluating our existing disclosures and may need to provide additional information as a result of adoption of the
Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”).

In June 2016, the FASB issued guidance to change the accounting for credit losses and modify the impairment model for certain
debt securities. The amendments will be effective for the Company for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2020.
Early adoption is permitted for all organizations for periods beginning after December 15, 2018.

The Company will apply the amendments to the ASU through a cumulative-effect adjustment to retained earnings as of the
beginning of the year of adoption. While early adoption is permitted beginning in first quarter 2019, we do not expect to elect
that option. We are evaluating the impact of the ASU on our consolidated financial statements. In addition to our allowance for
loan losses, we will also record an allowance for credit losses on debt securities instead of applying the impairment model
currently utilized. The amount of the adjustments will be impacted by each portfolio’s composition and credit quality at the
adoption date as well as economic conditions and forecasts at that time.

In January 2017, the FASB amended the Goodwill and Other Topic of the Accounting Standards Codification to simplify the
accounting for goodwill impairment for public business entities and other entities that have goodwill reported in their financial
statements and have not elected the private company alternative for the subsequent measurement of goodwill. The amendment
removes Step 2 of the goodwill impairment test. A goodwill impairment will now be the amount by which a reporting unit’s
carrying value exceeds its fair value, not to exceed the carrying amount of goodwill. The effective date and transition
requirements for the technical corrections will be effective for the Company for reporting periods beginning after December 15,
2020. Early adoption is permitted for interim or annual goodwill impairment tests performed on testing dates after January 1,
2017. The Company does not expect these amendments to have a material effect on its financial statements.

In February 2018, the FASB amended the Income Statement—Reporting Comprehensive Income Topic of the Accounting
Standards Codification. The amendments allow a reclassification from accumulated other comprehensive income to retained
earnings for stranded tax effects resulting from the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act. The amendments are effective for fiscal years
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beginning after December 15, 2018, and interim periods within those fiscal years. The Company adopted this pronouncement
by retrospective application to each period (or periods) in which the effect of the change in the tax rate was recognized. The
impact of the reclassification from other comprehensive loss to retained earnings was $25,360.

In August 2018, the FASB amended the Fair Value Measurement Topic of the Accounting Standards Codification. The
amendments remove, modify, and add certain fair value disclosure requirements based on the concepts in the FASB Concepts
Statement, Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting-Chapter 8: Notes to Financial Statements. The amendments are
effective for all entities for fiscal years, and interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning after December 15, 2019. Early
adoption is permitted. An entity is permitted to early adopt any removed or modified disclosures upon issuance of this ASU and
delay adoption of the additional disclosures until their effective date. The Company does not expect these amendments to have
a material effect on its financial statements.

In November 2018, the FASB amended the Collaborative Arrangements Topic of the Accounting Standards Codification to
clarify the interaction between the guidance for certain collaborative arrangements and the new revenue recognition financial
accounting and reporting standard. The amendments will be effective for the Company for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2019, and interim periods within those fiscal years. Early adoption is permitted. The Company does not expect
these amendments to have a material effect on its financial statements.

In November 2018, the FASB issued guidance to amend the Financial Instruments-Credit Losses topic of the Accounting
Standards Codification. The guidance aligns the implementation date of the topic for annual financial statements of nonpublic
companies with the implementation date for their interim financial statements. The guidance also clarifies that receivables
arising from operating leases are not within the scope of the topic, but rather, should be accounted for in accordance with the
leases topic. The amendments will be effective for the Company for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2020. Early
adoption is permitted for all organizations for periods beginning after December 15, 2018. The Company is currently in the
process of evaluating the impact of adoption of this guidance on the financial statements.

Other accounting standards that have been issued or proposed by the FASB or other standards-setting bodies are not expected
to have a material impact on the Company’s financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

NOTE 2 – CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

As of December 31, 2018, cash and cash equivalents totaled $50.8 million and consisted of $4.3 million in cash and non-
interest-bearing deposits with other banks, $45.6 million in interest-bearing deposits with other banks, and $967,268 in federal
funds sold. Interest-bearing deposits in other banks included $39.2 million at the Federal Reserve, and $5.7 million at the
Federal Home Loan Bank.

As of December 31, 2017, cash and cash equivalents totaled $38.0 million and consisted of $3.8 million in cash and non-
interest-bearing deposits with other banks, $34 million in interest-bearing deposits with other banks, and $200,237 in federal
funds sold. Interest-bearing deposits in other banks included $33.2 million at the Federal Reserve, and $139,382 at the Federal
Home Loan Bank.

These balances allow the Bank to meet liquidity requirements and provide temporary holdings until the funds can be otherwise
deployed or invested.

NOTE 3 – SECURITIES

The fair value of the Company’s securities available for sale totaled $21.2 million and $22.1 million as of December 31, 2018
and 2017, respectively. At December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Bank’s securities consisted of Small Business Administration
bonds, city and county issued municipal bonds, mortgage-backed securities and collateralized mortgage obligations issued by
the Federal National Mortgage Association (“FNMA”), the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (“FHLMC”), and the
Government National Mortgage Association (“GNMA”), summarized as follows:
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December 31, 2018
Gross Gross

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value

Small Business Administration (SBA) bonds $   3,466,434 $   10,673            $    (46,958) $   3,430,149 
Mortgage-backed securities (MBSs) 12,391,209 -                (360,670) 12,030,539 
Collateralized mortgage obligations (CMOs) 3,868,416 -                (104,176) 3,764,240 
Municipal bonds 1,932,966 39,987                             - 1,972,953 
Total securities available for sale $ 21,659,025 $   50,660            $  (511,804) $ 21,197,881 

December 31, 2017
Gross Gross

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value

Small Business Administration (SBA) bonds $   3,302,878 $   20,813           $    (18,594) $   3,305,097 
Mortgage-backed securities (MBSs) 14,316,598 21,077               (231,394) 14,106,281 
Collateralized mortgage obligations (CMOs) 3,290,847 -                 (64,730) 3,226,117 
Municipal bonds 1,437,004 69,058                             - 1,506,062 
Total securities available for sale $ 22,347,327 $ 110,948           $  (314,718) $ 22,143,557 

The contractual maturity distribution of the Company’s securities portfolio at December 31, 2018 is summarized below. Actual
maturities may differ from contractual maturities shown below since issuers may have the right to pre-pay these obligations
without pre-payment penalties.

Securities
Available For Sale

Amortized Fair
Cost Value

Due in less than five years $   1,165,221 $   1,144,521
Due after five years but within ten years 4,609,807 4,565,448
Due after ten years 15,883,997 15,487,912
Total (1) $ 21,659,025 $ 21,197,881
(1) Maturities estimated based on average life of security.

At December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Bank also owned Federal Reserve Bank (“FRB”) stock with a cost of $1,232,000 and
$1,219,900, respectively, with a yield of 6% in both years. The amount of FRB stock held is based on our shareholders’ equity.
As shareholders’ equity increases due to earnings, the amount of FRB stock may also increase quarterly.

At December 31, 2018, and 2017, the Bank owned $548,800 and $682,600 in Federal Home Loan Bank (“FHLB”) stock,
respectively, with an average yield of 6.16% and 5.16% respectively. Stock ownership is a requirement of membership. The
amount of FHLB stock held is based on total assets and the amount of outstanding advances with the FHLB. Therefore, stock
ownership levels with the FHLB are subject to change.

Securities pledged to secure public deposits and borrowings had amortized carrying costs of $13.7 million and market value of
$13.6 million at December 31, 2018. At December 31, 2017, securities pledged to secure public deposits and borrowings had
amortized carrying costs of $13.5 million and market value of $13.5 million. 

The Company had no securities sales during 2017 or 2018.

There were no write-downs for other-than-temporary declines in the fair value of debt securities in 2018 or 2017. The following
table summarizes the unrealized losses and fair value of securities, aggregated by category and length of time that securities
were in an unrealized loss position at December 31, 2018 and 2017.
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Securities classified as available-for-sale are recorded at fair market value. Of the securities in an unrealized loss position at
December 31, 2018, twenty-one securities were in a continuous loss position for twelve months or more. The Company does
not intend to sell these securities in an unrealized loss position, and it is more likely than not that the Company will not be
required to sell these securities before recovery of their amortized cost.

Management evaluates securities for other-than-temporary impairment at least on a quarterly basis, and more frequently when
economic or market concerns warrant such evaluation. Consideration is given to (1) the length of time and the extent to which
the fair value has been less than cost, (2) the financial condition and near-term prospects of the issuer, and (3) the intent and
ability of the Company to retain its investment in the issuer for a period of time sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery
in fair value.

In analyzing an issuer’s financial condition, management considers whether the securities are issued by the federal government
or its agencies, whether downgrades by bond rating agencies have occurred, and industry analysts’ reports. As management has
the ability to hold debt securities until maturity, or for the foreseeable future if classified as available for sale, no declines are
deemed to be other-than-temporary.

NOTE 4 – LOANS

The composition of the loan portfolio is based on the collateral of the loan and is summarized as follows:

December 31, 2018
Less than 12 months 12 months or longer Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized

Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
Small Business Administration (SBA) bonds $ 1,012,603 $      (8,748) $  1,848,636 $       (38,210) $   2,861,239 $   (46,958)
Mortgage-backed securities (MBSs) 1,409,228 (11,115) 10,621,311 (349,555) 12,030,539 (360,670)
Collateralized mortgage obligations (CMOs) 930,240 (4,991) 2,834,000 (99,185) 3,764,240 (104,176)
Total $   3,352,071 $   (24,854) $15,303,947 $    (486,950) $ 18,656,018 $ (511,804)

December 31, 2017
Less than 12 months 12 months or longer Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized

Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
Small Business Administration (SBA) bonds $ - $              - $ 1,219,051 $ (18,594) $   1,219,051 $   (18,594)
Mortgage-backed securities (MBSs) 7,383,548 (104,508) 5,059,371 (126,886) 12,442,919 (231,394)
Collateralized mortgage obligations (CMOs) 2,430,257 (44,975) 795,860 (19,755) 3,226,117 (64,730)
Total $   9,813,805 $ (149,483) $ 7,074,282 $    (165,235) $ 16,888,087 $ (314,718)

December 31,
2018 2017

Construction and land development $   21,194,201 $   24,434,565
Real estate - mortgage 95,075,584 82,613,387
Real estate - other 131,172,384 111,104,729
Commercial and industrial 28,586,482 20,093,819
Consumer and other 12,347,555 11,232,176
Gross loans 288,376,206 249,478,676
Allowance for loan losses (2,389,716) (1,954,847)
Deferred loan fees, net (118,705) (237,391)
Loan mark - purchased loans (462,756) (1,109,039)
Total loans, net $ 285,405,029 $ 246,177,399
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Provision and Allowance for Loan Losses

An allowance for loan losses has been established through a provision for loan losses charged to expense on the consolidated
statements of operations. The allowance for loan losses represents an amount management has determined is adequate to
absorb probable losses on existing loans that may become uncollectible. Growth in the loan portfolio is the primary reason for
additions to the allowance for loan losses. Additionally, provisions may be made for non-performing loans.

The first step in the process is to risk grade each loan in the portfolio based on one common set of parameters that include
items like debt-to-worth ratio, liquidity of the borrower, net worth, experience of the borrower, and other factors. The general
pool of performing loans is then segmented into categories based on FFIEC call codes, which segments loans into types such as
commercial loans, construction loans, consumer loans, and so on based on the collateral that secures the loan. Segmenting the
loan portfolio by collateral is necessary when determining the loan loss allowance, as collateral values often determine the final
loss. The loss history of each loan type is measured and includes actual history experienced by the bank and the loss
experiences of peer banks. The loss history results in a factor that is applied to each loan pool. Additionally, other factors are
applied to represent known or expected changes to the loan portfolio resulting from economic and industry developments, the
depth and knowledge of management, changes in policies and practices, and more. These environmental factors require
judgment and estimates, and the eventual outcomes may differ from the estimates. The combined factors are applied to each
loan category and result in the necessary allowance for the general performing loan pool.

Loans purchased as a result of a business combination were purchased at fair value which accounted for any future credit
losses. Therefore, purchased loans are excluded from the general reserve calculation. A valuation allowance is established for
these loans when it is probable that the Company will be unable to collect all the cash flows expected at acquisition.

Non-performing loans, including loans with loan grades of Substandard, Doubtful, or worse, and including past due loans and
loans on non-accrual are evaluated separately. Impaired loans and non-performing loans can require higher loan loss reserves. If
a loan is individually evaluated and identified as impaired, it is measured by using one of three methods; either the fair value of
the collateral less costs to sell, present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate, or
observable market price of the loan. Management chooses a method on a loan-by-loan basis depending on which information is
available. Measuring impaired loans requires judgment and estimates and the eventual outcomes may differ from the estimates.

The following table sets forth certain information with respect to our allowance for loan losses and the composition of charge-
offs and recoveries for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017:

Allowance for Loan Losses and Recorded Investment in Loans Receivable
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Construction Real Real Commercial Consumer
and Land Estate Estate and and

Development 1-4 Family Other Industrial Other Unallocated Total
Allowance for loan losses:
Beginning Balance $        296,497 $        227,535 $     1,067,897 $        272,269 $          50,649 $          40,000 $     1,954,847 

Charge-offs -   - - (30,000) - - (30,000)
Recoveries - - - 70 3,379 - 3,449 
Provisions (36,769) (19,615) 373,759 186,174 (2,129) (40,000) 461,420 

Ending Balance $        259,728 $        207,920 $     1,441,656 $        428,513 $          51,899 $ - $     2,389,716 
Ending Balances:

Individually evaluated
for impairment $ - $ - $        248,889 $ - $ - $ - $        248,889 

Collectively evaluated
for impairment $        259,728 $        207,920 $     1,192,767 $        428,513 $          51,899 $ - $     2,140,827 

Loans receivable:
Ending balance - total $   21,194,201 $   95,075,584 $ 131,172,384 $   28,586,482 $   12,347,555 $ 288,376,206 
Ending Balances:

Individually evaluated
for impairment $ - $        479,937 $     1,677,234 $ - $ - $     2,157,171 

Collectively evaluated
for impairment $   21,194,201 $   94,595,647 $ 129,495,150 $   28,586,482 $   12,347,555 $ 286,219,035 
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Allowance for Loan Losses and Recorded Investment in Loans Receivable
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

Construction Real Real Commercial Consumer
and Land Estate Estate and and

Development 1-4 Family Other Industrial Other Unallocated Total
Allowance for loan losses:
Beginning Balance $        101,547 $        348,834 $        771,558 $        200,790 $          32,291 $          16,000 $     1,471,020 

Charge-offs -   (81,942) - (4,842) (14,994) - (101,778)
Recoveries 18 30,000 - 50 - - 30,068 
Provisions 194,932 (69,357) 296,339 76,271 33,352 24,000 555,537 

Ending Balance $        296,497 $        227,535 $     1,067,897 $        272,269 $          50,649 $          40,000 $     1,954,847 
Ending Balances:

Individually evaluated
for impairment $ - $ - $        178,765 $ - $ - $ - $        178,765 

Collectively evaluated
for impairment $        296,497 $        227,535 $        889,132 $        272,269 $          50,649 $          40,000 $     1,776,082 

Loans receivable:
Ending balance - total $   24,434,565 $   82,613,387 $ 111,104,729 $   20,093,819 $   11,232,176 $ 249,478,676 
Ending Balances:

Individually evaluated
for impairment $ - $          27,452 $     1,704,949 $ - $ - $     1,732,401 

Collectively evaluated
for impairment $   24,434,565 $   82,585,935 $ 109,399,780 $   20,093,819 $   11,232,176 $ 247,746,275 

The adequacy of the allowance for loan losses is reviewed on an ongoing basis. The amount of the allowance is adjusted to
reflect changing circumstances. Recognized losses are charged to the allowance and recoveries are added back to the allowance.
As of December 31, 2018, management considers the allowance for loan losses to be adequate to meet presently known and
inherent losses in the loan portfolio. The underlying assumptions used in the analysis may be impacted in future periods by
changes in economic conditions, the impact of changing regulations, and the discovery of new information with respect to
borrowers not previously known to management. Thus, there can be no assurance that charge-offs in future periods will not
exceed the allowance for loan losses or that additional increases in the allowance for loan losses will not be required.

Credit Quality and Non-Performing Loans

Generally, the first indication of the non-performance of a loan is a missed payment. Thus, one of the adverse indicators used in
monitoring the credit quality of a loan is the past due status of the loan payments. As of December 31, 2018, loans past due
totaled $253,488. As of December 31, 2017, loans past due totaled $166,234. The Bank did not have any loans past due 90 days
and still accruing as of December 31, 2018 and 2017.

Additionally, a loan will be placed on nonaccrual status when it becomes 90 days past due as to principal or interest, or when
management believes, after considering economic and business conditions and collection efforts, that the borrower’s financial
condition is such that collection of the loan is doubtful. When a loan is placed on non-accrual, all previously accrued interest
that has not been received is reversed against current income. The recognition of interest on a non-accrual loan is placed on a
cash basis and can be recognized when and if a payment is received. Generally, payments received on non-accrual loans are
applied directly to principal.

At December 31, 2018, the Bank had three loans totaling $1,122,030 in nonaccrual status, one of which was past due. At
December 31, 2017, the Bank had three loans totaling $674,869 in nonaccrual status, one of which was past due.
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Below are tables that present the past due and non-accrual status of loans receivable as of December 31, 2018 and 2017.

December 31, 2018
Past Due >

30 - 59 Days 60 - 89 Days Current and 90 Days and
Past Due Past Due Nonaccrual Accruing Total Loans Accruing

Construction/Land development $ 3,915 $                    - $                    - $   21,190,286 $   21,194,201 $                    -   
Real estate - mortgage 177,854 71,407 479,938 94,346,385 95,075,584 - 
Real estate - other - - 642,092 130,530,292 131,172,384 - 
Commercial and industrial - - - 28,586,482 28,586,482 - 
Consumer and other 312 - - 12,347,243 12,347,555 - 
Total $        182,081 $          71,407 $        1,122,030 $ 287,000,688 $ 288,376,206 $                    -

December 31, 2017
Past Due >

30 - 59 Days 60 - 89 Days Current and 90 Days and
Past Due Past Due Nonaccrual Accruing Total Loans Accruing

Construction/Land development $                    - $                    - $                    - $   24,434,565 $   24,434,565 $                    -   
Real estate - mortgage 164,434 - 29,200 82,419,753 82,613,387 - 
Real estate - other - - 645,669 110,459,060 111,104,729 - 
Commercial and industrial - - - 20,093,819 20,093,819 - 
Consumer and other 1,800 - - 11,230,376 11,232,176 - 
Total $        166,234 $                   - $        674,869 $ 248,637,573 $ 249,478,676 $                    -

Loans are assigned a credit risk grade upon their origination. Loans are monitored for non-performance and may be
downgraded to reflect adverse conditions that might affect collectability. Heightened risk characteristics include a history of
poor payment performance, poor financial performance, as well as the potential for adverse earnings impact from deteriorating
collateral values. The Bank had $6,780,470 and $7,142,674 in loans classified as Special Mention or worse as of December 31,
2018 and 2017, respectively.
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General definitions for each credit risk level are as follows:

•  Prime credits present little to no risk as they are secured by cash and/or the borrowers have unquestionable strength
with access to liquidity.

•  High quality credits consist of borrowers with sound primary and secondary repayment sources, strong debt capacity,
individuals with strong credit ratings, and no outstanding credit, policy, or collateral exceptions.

•  Good credits have average risk. Borrowers have sound primary and secondary repayment sources, strong debt capacity
and coverage, and substantial liquidity and net worth. Commercial borrowers in this category work within industries
exhibiting strong trends and the company exhibits favorable profitability, liquidity, and leverage trends with good
management in key positions.

•  Acceptable credits are those that perform relatively close to expectations with adequate evidence the borrower is
generating adequate cash flows to service the debt. Borrowers have good debt coverage and capacity, average liquidity
and net worth, and operate in industries that exhibit good trends.

•  Acceptable with care credits may be borrowers who exhibit a limited asset base and liquidity, have debt capacity that is
limited, or may be a start up venture that is dependent on guarantor strength. These borrowers have elements of risk the
Bank chooses to closely monitor.

•  Special mention credits have a potential weakness that deserves close attention. If left uncorrected, these potential
weaknesses may result in deterioration. Credits in this category are formally monitored on a recurring basis. 

•  Substandard credits are inadequately protected by the worth and paying capacity of the borrower or of the collateral
pledged. These credits exhibit a well-defined weakness that may jeopardize the liquidation of the debt. There is a
possibility these credits may result in losses if the observed weakness is not corrected.

•  Doubtful credits have all the weaknesses of a substandard credit with the added characteristic that the weakness makes
collection or liquidation in full improbable. 

•  Loss assets are considered uncollectible and of such little value that their continuance as bankable assets is not
warranted. Losses should be taken in the period in which they surface as uncollectible.

Credit risk grades within the loan portfolio as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 are presented in the following three tables,
separately for commercial loans, residential real estate loans, and consumer loans, with breakdowns provided for loan types
within those categories.
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Credit Risk Profile of Commercial Loans
December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

Commercial Commercial Commercial Commercial
and Real Estate Commercial and Real Estate Commercial

Industrial Construction Real Estate Industrial Construction Real Estate
Prime $      239,648 $ - $ - $      176,024 $ - $  -
High quality 500,000 68,636 - 539,792 - -
Good 1,952,098 1,814,546 7,148,815 1,203,521 1,892,172 5,159,694
Acceptable 18,885,430 12,902,849 98,867,522 13,246,641 15,764,323 81,648,362
Acceptable with care 7,009,306 234,310 20,594,160 4,920,022 1,676,638 18,961,895
Special mention - 145,006 1,308,074 - 5,506 2,144,146
Substandard assets - 334,292 3,253,813 7,819 547,982 3,190,632
Doubtful assets - - - - - -
Loss assets - - - - - -
Total $ 28,586,482 $ 15,499,639 $ 131,172,384 $ 20,093,819 $ 19,886,621 $ 111,104,729

Credit Risk Profile of Residential Loans
December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

Residential Residential Residential Residential
Mortgage Construction Mortgage Construction

Prime $ - $ - $ - $ -
High quality 8,212,798 - 5,408,367 -
Good 40,692,929 2,364,650 38,883,673 1,287,459
Acceptable 39,125,984 3,121,508 30,834,002 3,260,485
Acceptable with care 5,188,307 208,404 6,240,756 -
Special mention 457,663 - 293,563 -
Substandard assets 1,397,903 - 953,026 -
Doubtful assets - - - -
Loss assets - - - -
Total $ 95,075,584 $    5,694,562 $  82,613,387 $    4,547,944 

Credit Risk Profile of Consumer Loans
December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

Consumer - Consumer - Consumer - Consumer -
Auto Other Auto Other

Prime $ - $       370,526 $ - $       366,887
High quality 97,551 273,969 4,790 206,910
Good 25,125 8,113,165 46,180 7,233,393
Acceptable 789,502 2,577,728 986,074 2,241,335
Acceptable with care 52,593 47,396 69,234 77,373
Special mention - - - -
Substandard assets - - - -
Doubtful assets - - - -
Loss assets - - - -
Total $       964,771 $  11,382,784 $    1,106,278 $  10,125,898
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Impaired loans totaled $2,157,171 and $1,732,401 as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. The following table sets
forth certain information regarding the type of impaired loans, their related allowances, and any interest income recognized on
impaired loans during the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017.

If a loan is modified as a result of a customer’s inability to meet the original terms, and if the modification gives the customer
more favorable terms that would not otherwise be granted, the loan is considered to be a troubled debt restructuring (“TDR”).
As of December 31, 2018, the Bank has one loan in the amount of $1,035,141 that qualifies as troubled debt restructuring,
which is currently performing as agreed. During the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, no additional TDRs were
identified, and no previously identified TDRs subsequently defaulted during 2018 or 2017.

We account for acquisitions under FASB ASC Topic 805, Business Combinations, which requires the use of the acquisition method
of accounting. All identifiable assets acquired, including loans, are recorded at fair value. No allowance for loan losses related to
the acquired loans is recorded on the acquisition date because the fair value of the loans acquired incorporates assumptions
regarding credit risk. For acquired loans that are not deemed credit impaired at acquisition, credit discounts representing the
principal losses expected over the life of the loan are a component of the initial fair value. Subsequent to the purchase date, the
methods utilized to estimate the required allowance for loan losses for these loans is similar to originated loans; however, the
Company records a provision for loan losses only when the required allowance exceeds the remaining credit discounts. The
remaining differences between the purchase price and the unpaid principal balance at the date of acquisition are recorded in
interest income over the economic life of the loans.

Acquired credit-impaired loans are accounted for under the accounting guidance for loans and debt securities acquired with
deteriorated credit quality, found in FASB ASC Topic 310-30, Receivables—Loans and Debt Securities Acquired with Deteriorated Credit
Quality, and initially measured at fair value, which includes estimated future credit losses expected to be incurred over the life of
the loans. Loans acquired in business combinations with evidence of credit deterioration are considered impaired. Loans
acquired through business combinations that do not meet the specific criteria of FASB ASC Topic 310-30, but for which a
discount is attributable, at least in part to credit quality, are also accounted for under this guidance. Certain acquired loans,
including performing loans and revolving lines of credit (consumer and commercial), are accounted for in accordance with
FASB ASC Topic 310-20, where the discount is accreted through earnings based on estimated cash flows over the estimated life
of the loan.

Impaired Loans
As of and For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Outstanding Average Interest
Principal Recorded Recorded Related Income
Balance Investment Investment Allowance Recognized

With no related allowance recorded:
Real estate - other $         38,889 $         22,071 $         50,528 $ - $ -
Real estate - mortgage 499,937 479,937 497,821 - -

With an allowance recorded:
Real estate - other 1,655,163 1,655,163 1,724,866 248,889 42,309

Total $    2,193,989 $    2,157,171 $    2,273,215 $      248,889 $ 42,309 

Impaired Loans
As of and For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

Outstanding Average Interest
Principal Recorded Recorded Related Income
Balance Investment Investment Allowance Recognized

With no related allowance recorded:
Real estate - other $       645,669 $       645,669 $       669,880 $                   - $         19,516 
Real estate - mortgage 27,452 27,452 29,200 -   1,613 

With an allowance recorded:
Real estate - other 1,059,280 1,059,280 1,120,740 178,765  43,563

Total $    1,732,401 $    1,732,401 $    1,819,820 $       178,765  $         64,692 
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Purchase credit impaired (“PCI”) loans acquired during 2016 totaled $2 million at estimated fair value, and acquired
performing loans totaling $71.1 million at estimated fair value were not credit impaired. The gross contractual amount
receivable for PCI loans and acquired performing loans was approximately $2.4 million and $73.0 million, respectively, as of
the acquisition date. The fair value of the total loan portfolio was estimated to be $73.1 million, which represents a $2.2 
million discount.

In conjunction with the acquisition of VistaBank on October 8, 2016, the following table is summary of changes in the
purchased loan discount for the year ended December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017:

At December 31, 2018 there was no remaining recorded investment in purchased impaired loans. At December 31, 2017, the
recorded investment in purchased impaired loans was $1.7 million; the unpaid principal balance was $2.0 million.

NOTE 5 – PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT

The composition of premises and equipment is summarized as follows:

                                                                                                                                               For the Years Ended
December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

Accretable yield, beginning of period $    1,109,039 $    1,913,903
Additions - -
Accretion (646,283) (763,077)
Other changes, net - (41,787)

Accretable yield, end of period $       462,756 $    1,109,039

                                                                                                                                                          
December 31,

2018 2017
Land $    3,188,833 $    2,760,082
Buildings 3,760,935 3,760,935
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment 1,264,076 1,014,276
Computers and Software 931,631 769,204
Automobiles 64,104 66,264
Leasehold improvements 1,517,788 1,292,933
Construction and FF&E in process 22,597 108,549
Total premises and equipment 10,749,964 9,772,243
Accumulated depreciation and amortization (2,433,742) (1,960,891)
Premises and equipment, net $    8,316,222 $    7,811,352

As of December 31, 2018, construction and FF&E in process primarily consisted of costs associated with branch building costs
in Conway, SC and Columbia, SC, which are expected to be completed in 2019 and 2020, respectively. As of December 31,
2017, construction and FF&E in process primarily consisted of costs associated with the upfit of newly leased space in
Greenville, SC, for which completion was in the second quarter of 2018, as well as renovation to existing leased space in Aiken,
SC, for which completion was in the first quarter of 2018.

Depreciation and amortization expense for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 was $497,148 and $463,471,
respectively.
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Based on the core deposit intangibles as of December 31, 2018, the following table presents the aggregate amortization expense
for each of the five succeeding years ending December 31:

NOTE 6 – GOODWILL AND CORE DEPOSIT INTANGIBLE

The following table presents information about our intangible assets at December 31, 2018 and 2017:

2018 2017
Gross Carrying Accumulated Gross Carrying Accumulated

Amount Amortization Amount Amortization
Indefinite lived intangible asset:

Goodwill $    2,991,535 $                   - $    2,991,535 $                   - 
Finite lived intangible asset:

Core deposit intangibles $       805,000 $       280,008 $       805,000 $         169,536 

(Dollars in thousands)
2019 $ 94,374
2020 80,648
2021 67,810
2022 55,784
2023 46,189

Amortization expense of $110,472 and $134,319 related to the core deposit intangibles was recognized in 2018 and 2017,
respectively.

Goodwill totaled $2,991,535 for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017. In the first quarter of 2017, within the allowed
12 month post-merger adjustment period for the merger that occurred in October 2016, it was determined an additional
decrease to the Deferred Tax Asset of $588,897 was needed as a result of the merger. Goodwill is reviewed for impairment
annually in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. The Company’s evaluation considers various
components, to include economic conditions, industry considerations, financial performance as well as other information. As
of December 31, 2018 and 2017, management determined that no impairment existed on the goodwill.

NOTE 7 – LEASES

On July 28, 2012, the Company entered into a lease for 11,260 square feet at the current headquarters facility located at
Grissom Parkway and 38th Avenue in Myrtle Beach, South Carolina. The initial term of the lease began on November 1, 2012
and was for ten years with three five-year renewal options. The first rent increase began January 1, 2014 by 2% and increases
annually thereafter by 2%. Additionally, the Company entered into a lease amendment on October 22, 2015 for an additional
1,741 square feet at the headquarters facility for an identical term. Rental expense for the headquarters location for the years
ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 was $270,948 and $271,779, respectively. Future minimum lease payments anticipated
under the lease are $1,012,294 for the remaining initial ten year term.

On July 20, 2012, the Company entered into a lease for a banking branch facility in Garden City, South Carolina. The initial
terms of the lease began on September 1, 2012 for ten years with two five-year renewal options. Periodic rent increases every
two years were pre-scheduled for the initial term. Rental expense for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 was $43,600
and $43,600 respectively. Future minimum lease expense anticipated under the remaining initial term of the lease is $184,000.

In March 2007, VistaBank entered into a 2,722 square foot lease for a banking branch facility in Aiken, South Carolina. The
initial terms of the lease were for five years, ending in March 2012, with two five-year renewal options. The first renewal option
was exercised by VistaBank, effective through May 31, 2017. With the October 2016 merger, the Company assumed the lease.
In November 2016, the Company exercised the second five-year renewal term through May 31, 2022. Rent expense incurred by
the Company for this lease in 2018 and 2017 was $84,671 and $82,618, respectively. Future minimum lease expense
anticipated under the remaining terms of the lease are $301,567.
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In January 2007, VistaBank entered into a 1,950 square feet lease agreement for a banking facility in Columbia, South Carolina.
In February 2013, the lease was amended to a two year lease with two two-year renewal options, both of which were exercised.
In July 2016, another lease amendment was entered into extending the lease to December 31, 2017 with an option for two one-
year lease extensions. With the October 2016 merger, the Company assumed the lease. In December 2017, The Company
exercised a one year extension to December 31, 2018, at which time the lease became month to month. Rent expense incurred
by the Company for this lease in 2018 and 2017 was $38,227 and $37,733, respectively. Future minimum lease expense
anticipated under the remaining terms of the lease are $38,396.

In August 2008, VistaBank entered into a 1,432 square feet lease agreement for a banking facility in Conway, South Carolina.
The original terms of the lease included a one year term with four one-year renewal options. An addendum in October 2013
extended the lease for one year with a one year renewal option. Another addendum in August 2015 extended the lease to
August 31, 2017. The Company assumed the lease with the October 2016 merger. Two subsequent addendums extended the
lease to August 31, 2018 and August 31, 2019. Rent expense incurred by the Company for this lease in 2018 and 2017 was
$19,200 and $19,200, respectively. Future minimum lease expense anticipated under the remaining terms of the lease are
$12,800.

In June 2017, the Company entered into a lease for a Loan Production Office located in Greenville, South Carolina. The initial
terms of the lease were month to month until either party submits 30 days notice to terminate. The lease was terminated after
March 2018. Rent expense incurred by the Company for this lease in 2018 and 2017 was $4,428 and $10,332, respectively.

In April 2018, the Company entered into a 3,760 square feet lease agreement for a full service banking facility in Greenville,
South Carolina. The original term of the lease was for 10 years with two five-year renewal options. Rent expense incurred by
the Company for this lease in 2018 was $69,708. Future minimum lease expense anticipated under the lease are $562,263.

Future minimum lease payments, excluding any renewal options for all leases, are summarized as follows:

2018 $     581,347
2019 542,614
2020 554,108
2021 438,797
2022 118,073

$  2,234,939

NOTE 8 – DEPOSITS

The composition of deposits is summarized as follows:

December 31, Percentage
2018 of Total

Noninterest bearing demand $   42,982,147 13.2%
Interest checking 29,099,333 8.9
Money market 122,919,097 37.6
Savings 6,501,236 2.0
Certificates of deposit < $100,000 42,626,675 13.0
Certificates deposit ≥ $100,000 82,894,635 25.3
Total deposits $ 327,023,123 100.0%

The Company has no brokered deposits as of December 31, 2018 and 2017.

Time deposits that meet or exceed the FDIC insurance limit of $250,000 at year end 2018 and 2017 were $28.2 million and
$25.8 million, respectively.
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At December 31, 2018, the scheduled maturities of all certificates of deposit are as follows:

Maturing in:
2019 $ 79,456,716
2020 23,061,975
2021 18,178,268
2022 3,998,516
2023 825,835
Total certificates of deposit $ 125,521,310 

NOTE 9 – RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Certain parties (principally certain directors and executive officers of the Company, their immediate families and business
interests) were loan customers of and had other transactions in the normal course of business with the Company. Related party
loans are made on substantially the same terms, including interest rates and collateral, as those prevailing at the time for
comparable transactions with unrelated persons and do not involve more than the normal risk of collectability. Related party
loans totaled $4,859,637 and $4,349,235 as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

Deposits from directors and executive officers and their related interests totaled $7,000,112 and $8,624,762 at December 31,
2018 and 2017, respectively.

NOTE 10 – ADVANCES FROM FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK

Advances from Federal Home Loan Bank consisted of the following at December 31, 2018 and 2017:

Fixed Rate Advances Maturing: Interest Rate 2018 2017
January 19, 2018 1.41% $ - $   1,500,000
February 20, 2018 1.45% - 1,500,000
March 20, 2018 1.49% - 1,500,000
April 20, 2018 1.55% - 1,500,000
May 21, 2018 1.60% - 1,500,000
June 20, 2018 1.64% - 1,500,000
October 15, 2019 2.40% 1,000,000 1,000,000
December 31, 2019 2.65% 5,000,000 - 
Total $ 6,000,000 $ 10,000,000  

The total borrowing capacity at the Federal Home Loan Bank as of December 31, 2018 was $28.5 million, of which $6 million
was outstanding and $22.5 million was still available. Loans pledged to the Federal Home Loan Bank as of December 31, 2018
totaled $35.6 million.

NOTE 11 – OTHER BORROWINGS

In September 2016, the Company established a borrowing facility with First National Bankers Bank (“FNBB”) totaling $4.5
million. The borrowing was a ten year loan with a interest only payments due quarterly for the first two years, subsequently
converting to principal and interest payments for the remaining term. The loan rate was the floating prime rate. The loan was
collateralized by the Coastal Carolina National Bank stock. The loan was scheduled to mature September 15, 2026, but was
repaid in full in July 2017.
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NOTE 12 – LINES OF CREDIT

As of December 31, 2018, the Company had unused lines of credit to purchase federal funds from correspondent banks totaling
$18.5 million. These lines of credit are available on a one to fifteen-day basis for general corporate purposes. All of the lines do
not contain maturity terms, and are subject to be withdrawn by the offering correspondent institution at their discretion. If
borrowed upon, the lines of credit would be unsecured. The lines of credit available at December 31, 2018 were as follows:

Balance
Correspondent Bank Commitment Outstanding
State Bank and Trust $   4,000,000 $                  -
CenterState Bank 3,000,000 -
First National Bankers Bank 5,000,000  -
The Independent Bankers Bank 3,500,000 -
SunTrust Bank 3,000,000 -
Total $ 18,500,000 $               -

NOTE 13 – SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

As of December 31, 2018, common shares issued and outstanding totaled 5,592,617.

The Company has the authority to issue up to 50 million shares of common stock with a par value of $.01 per share. On June
30, 2017, the Company completed a Private Placement common stock offering that resulted in 2,307,691 additional shares
issued at $7.15 per share. In addition, a restricted stock award of 2,500 shares was granted in October 2017.

In addition, the Company has the authority to issue up to 10 million shares of preferred stock with a par value $.01 per share.
As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, no preferred shares were issued and outstanding.

As a national bank, the Bank may not pay dividends from its capital. All dividends must be paid out of undivided profits,
subject to other applicable provisions of law. Subject to certain restrictions, the directors of a national bank may declare a
dividend of so much of the undivided profits of the Bank as the directors judge to be prudent. In addition, a national bank may
not declare and pay dividends in any year in excess of an amount equal to the sum of the total of the net income of the Bank for
that year and the retained net income of the Bank for the preceding two years, minus the sum of any transfers required by the
OCC and any transfers required to be made to a fund for the retirement of any preferred stock, unless the OCC approves the
declaration and payment of dividends in excess of such amount.

NOTE 14 – EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLAN

The Company has a 401(k) defined contribution plan available to all employees to participate in at their discretion. Company
contributions to the plan totaled $46,199 and $37,974 for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, recorded
within salaries and employee benefits.

NOTE 15 – STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

The Company’s 2009 Stock Incentive Plan was approved by the Company’s Board of Directors (the “Board”) on June 3, 2009.
Under the terms of this plan, officers and key employees may be granted both nonqualified and incentive stock options and
restricted stock awards. The Board reserved 161,778 shares of common stock for issuance under the 2009 Stock Incentive Plan.
Through December 31, 2018, there have been 37,500 options and 11,000 restricted stock awards granted under this plan,
leaving 113,278 shares available for future issuance.
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The Company’s 2016 Stock Option Plan for Directors was approved by the Company’s Board of Directors on December 14,
2016. Under the terms of this plan, members of the holding company board of directors may be granted incentive stock
options. The Board reserved 190,000 shares of common stock for issuance under the 2016 Stock Option Plan for Directors.
Through December 31, 2018, there have been 172,927 fully vested shares issued under this plan, with 17,073 shares available
for future issuance.

Stock options – Through December 31, 2018, there are 37,500 fully vested stock options that have been issued and not
exercised through the Company’s 2009 Stock Incentive Plan.

Through December 31, 2018, there have been 172,927 fully vested stock options that have been issued and not exercised
through the Company’s 2016 Stock Option Plan for Directors.

There are 71,063 options that were converted from the VistaBank merger in 2016. Of that amount, 57,023 options are fully
vested and not exercised. At the time of the merger in October 2016, there were 35,964 options fully vested and not exercised.
The remaining 35,099 options were issued in 2015 and carried a pro-rata annual vesting schedule over five years.

There was no stock option activity in 2017 or 2018.

The following table presents a summary of the stock option activity for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017.

Weighted - Weighted -
Average Average

Grant Date Exercise
Options Fair Value Price

Outstanding at December 31, 2016 281,490 $             2.01 $           10.26
Granted - - -
Converted due to merger - - -
Exercised - - -
Forfeited - - -
Outstanding at December 31, 2017 281,490 $             2.01 $           10.26 
Options Exercisable as of December 31, 2017 260,431

Outstanding at December 31, 2017 281,490 $             2.01 $           10.26
Granted - - -
Converted due to merger - - -
Exercised - - -
Forfeited - - -
Outstanding at December 31, 2018 281,490 $             2.01 $           10.26 
Options Exercisable as of December 31, 2018 267,450 

The Company recognized stock-based compensation costs related to stock options of $0 and $215 for the years ended
December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. As of December 31, 2018, there was no unrecognized compensation cost related
outstanding stock options.

Restricted Stock Awards – A total of 11,000 restricted stock awards have been granted and vested since 2009. The
compensation expense of all restricted stock awards is recognized over the vesting period of each grant.
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Weighted -
Average

Grant Date
Shares Fair Value

Outstanding at December 31, 2016 - $                   -
Granted 2,500 9.30
Vested (1,250) 9.30
Forfeited - -
Outstanding at December 31, 2017 1,250 $              9.30

Weighted -
Average

Grant Date
Shares Fair Value

Outstanding at December 31, 2017 1,250 $             9.30
Granted -
Vested (1,250) 9.30
Forfeited - -
Outstanding at December 31, 2018 - $                   -

As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, there was $0 and $8,719, respectively, of total unrecognized compensation cost related to
the restricted stock awards. The Company recognized restricted stock award costs of $8,719 and $14,531 for the years ended
December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

NOTE 16 – WARRANTS

In recognition of the substantial financial risks undertaken by the members of the organizing group, the Company granted an
aggregate of 255,992 warrants to its Organizers and one Founder in June 2009. Of the amount granted, 231,992 warrants were
vested immediately. The other 24,000 warrants were subject to an annual vesting schedule over 36 months and became fully
vested in 2012. All warrants are exercisable at a price of $10.00 per share, the initial offering price, and expire June 8, 2019.

In December 2016, the current Board of Directors members forfeited their outstanding warrants in exchange for options issued
under the 2016 Stock Option Plan for Directors. The total amount of forfeited warrants totaled 163,629. 

In addition, any VistaBank warrants outstanding at the time of the merger were converted using the purchase exchange ratio,
resulting in 19,440 warrants. Of this amount, the two surviving VistaBank directors forfeited 12,960 warrants in exchange for
options issued under the 2016 Stock Option Plan for Directors, leaving 6,480 warrants outstanding as of December 31, 2018.

There was no warrant activity in 2017 or 2018.
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The following table presents a summary of the warrant activity for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017:

Weighted -
Average

Grant Date
Warrants Fair Value

Outstanding at December 31, 2016 98,843 $ 2.48
Issued - -
Vested - -
Forfeited - -
Outstanding at December 31, 2017 98,843 $             2.48

Weighted -
Average

Grant Date
Warrants Fair Value

Outstanding at December 31, 2017 98,843 $             2.48
Issued - -
Vested - -
Forfeited - -
Outstanding at December 31, 2018 98,843 $             2.48

The Company recognized no expense during the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, related to these
director warrants. There is no further compensation costs anticipated related to the outstanding warrants.

NOTE 17 – INCOME TAXES

Income tax expense (benefit) consisted of the following for the years ended December 31:

For the Calendar Year
2018 2017

Current expense:
Federal $    (6,913) $      29,166
State 49,625 14,231

Total current 42,712 43,397
Deferred income taxes 549,245 1,878,572
Change in valuation allowance (2,139) 18,319
Income tax expense $ 589,818 $ 1,940,288



32 |  Fi n a n c i a l  R e p o r t 2018

The gross amounts of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are as follows:

December 31,
2018 2017

Deferred tax assets: 
Allowance for loan losses $    462,904 $    332,645
Net operating loss carry forward 873,189 1,282,975
Organization and start-up expenses 271,810 324,067
Stock options and warrants 44,392 100,285
Tax credits 635,976 596,378
Purchase accounting (11,845) 101,554
OREO - 11,080
Unrealized loss on securities available for sale 113,234 50,036
Other 109,400 93,603

Gross deferred tax assets 2,499,060 2,892,623
Valuation allowance (64,447) (66,586)

Net deferred tax assets 2,434,613 2,826,037

Deferred tax liabilities: 
Accumulated depreciation 75,211 23,376 
Capitalized loan costs and fees, net 66,085 36,459 
Goodwill amortization 15,398 12,465 
Prepaid expense 16,618 8,528 

Total deferred tax liabilities 173,312 80,828 
Net deferred tax asset $ 2,261,301 $ 2,745,209 

Deferred tax assets represent the future tax benefit of deductible differences and, if it is more likely than not that a tax asset will
not be realized, a valuation allowance is required to reduce the recorded deferred tax assets to net realizable value. As of
December 31, 2018, management has determined that it is more likely than not that the majority of the deferred tax asset from
continuing operations will be realized. The valuation allowance of $64,447 relates to the parent company’s state operating loss
carryforwards for which realizability is uncertain.

The Company has federal net operating losses of $3,885,846 as of December 31, 2018. These federal losses begin to expire in
2029. The Company has state net operating losses of $1,447,124 for the year ended December 31, 2018. These state losses
begin to expire in 2030. As a result of the VistaBank ownership change in 2016, Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code
places an annual limitation on the amount of federal net operating loss carryforwards which the Company may utilize. A
portion of VistaBank’s federal net operating losses not expected to be realized as a result of Section 382 was reflected in
goodwill. The Company expects the remaining Section 382 limited carryforwards to be realized within the applicable
carryforward period.

A reconciliation between the income tax expense (benefit) and the amount computed by applying the Federal statutory rate of
21% in 2018 and 34% in 2017 to income before income taxes follows:

For the Calendar Year
2018 2017

Tax expense at Federal statutory rate $    568,111 $    769,767
State income tax, net of federal income tax effect 78,408 19,710
Stock-based compensation 45 73
State tax credits (85,715) (63,195)
Cash surrender value of life insurance (14,943) (26,998)
Tax-exempt interest (3,339) (5,553)
Valuation allowance (2,139) 18,319
Tax impact of rate change - 1,220,485
Other 49,390 7,680
Income tax expense $    589,818  $ 1,940,288 
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The Company has analyzed the tax positions taken or expected to be taken in its tax returns and concluded it has no liability
related to uncertain tax positions in accordance with ASC 740-10 (Income Taxes). The Company’s policy is to classify any
interest or penalties recognized in accordance with ASC 740-10 as interest expense or noninterest expense, respectively.

Tax returns for 2015 and subsequent years are subject to examination by taxing authorities.

NOTE 18 – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company is subject to claims and lawsuits which arise primarily in the ordinary course of business. Management is
not aware of any legal proceedings which would have a material adverse effect on the financial position or operating results
of the Company.

The Company is party to various financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk in the normal course of business to meet the
financing needs of its customers. These financial instruments include commitments to extend credit and standby letters of
credit and involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit and interest rate risk in excess of the amounts recognized in the
consolidated financial statements.

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer so long as there is no violation of any condition
established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates and may require collateral from the borrower if
deemed necessary by the Company. Standby letters of credit are conditional commitments issued by the Company to guarantee
the performance of a customer to a third party up to a stipulated amount and with specified terms and conditions. Standby
letters of credit are recorded as a liability by the Company at the fair value of the obligation undertaken in issuing the
guarantee.

The Company uses the same credit policies in making commitments and conditional obligations as it does for instruments
reflected in the consolidated financial statements. The creditworthiness of each customer is evaluated on a case-by-case basis.
We evaluate each customer’s credit worthiness on a case-by-case basis. The amount of collateral obtained, if deemed necessary
by us upon extension of credit, is based on our credit evaluation of the borrower. Collateral varies but may include accounts
receivable, inventory, property, plant and equipment, and commercial and residential real estate. We manage the credit risk on
these commitments by subjecting them to normal underwriting and risk management processes.

Commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit are not recorded as an asset or liability by the Company until the
instrument is exercised. The Company had $674,310 and $244,063 in performance standby letters of credit at December 31,
2018 and 2017, respectively. Additional unfunded loan commitments totaled $40.5 million and $34.9 million as of December
31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

NOTE 19 – FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The current accounting literature requires the disclosure of fair value information for financial instruments, whether or not
they are recognized in the consolidated balance sheets, when it is practical to estimate the fair value. The guidance defines a
financial instrument as cash, evidence of an ownership interest in an entity or contractual obligations, which require the
exchange of cash, or other financial instruments. Certain items are specifically excluded from the disclosure requirements,
including the Company’s common stock, premises and equipment, accrued interest receivable and payable, and other assets and
liabilities.

The fair value of a financial instrument is the amount at which the asset or obligation could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. Fair value estimates are made at a specific point
in time based on relevant market information and information about the financial instruments. Because no market value exists
for a significant portion of the financial instruments, fair value estimates are based on judgments regarding future expected loss
experience, current economic conditions, risk characteristics of various financial instruments, and other factors.

The Company has used management’s best estimate of fair value based on the above assumptions. Thus, the fair values
presented may not be the amounts, which could be realized, in an immediate sale or settlement of the instrument. In addition,
any income taxes or other expenses, which would be incurred in an actual sale or settlement, are not taken into consideration
in the fair values presented.
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The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of significant financial instruments:

Cash and Due from Banks – The carrying amount is a reasonable estimate of fair value due to the short term nature of such
items.

Federal Funds Sold – The carrying amount is a reasonable estimate of fair value, as the term for Fed Funds sold is for one day.

Interest-bearing Bank Deposits – Due to the short-term and liquid nature of these deposits, the carrying amount is a
reasonable estimate of fair value.

Securities Available for Sale – Investment securities held-to-maturity and available-for-sale are recorded at fair value on a
recurring basis. Fair value measurement is based upon quoted prices, if available. If quoted prices are not available, fair values
are measured using independent pricing models or other model-based valuation techniques such as the present value of future
cash flows, adjusted for the security’s credit rating, prepayment assumptions and other factors such as credit loss assumptions.

Federal Reserve Bank and Federal Home Loan Bank Stock – The carrying value of nonmarketable equity securities
approximates the fair value since no ready market exists for the stock.

Loans Held for Sale – Loans held for sale are carried at the lower of cost or market value. The fair values of mortgage loans
held for sale are based on commitments on hand from investors within the secondary market for loans with similar
characteristics.

Loans Receivable – For certain categories of loans, such as variable rate loans, which are repriced frequently and have no
significant change in credit risk, fair values are based on the carrying amounts. The fair value of fixed rate loans is estimated by
discounting the future cash flows using the current rates at which similar loans would be made to borrowers with similar credit
ratings and for the same remaining maturities. The fair value of impaired loans is estimated based on discounted cash flows or
underlying collateral values, where applicable. Loan fair value estimated using exit price notion as of December 31, 2018 based
on adoption of ASU 2016-01. The methods used to estimate fair value of loans do not necessarily represent an exit price as of
December 31, 2017.

Bank Owned Life Insurance – The carrying amount is a reasonable estimate of fair value.

Deposits – The fair value of demand deposits, savings, and money market accounts is the amount payable on demand at the
reporting date. The fair values of certificates of deposit are estimated using a discounted cash flow calculation that applies
current interest rates to a schedule of aggregated expected maturities.

Advances from Federal Home Loan Bank – The fair values of fixed rate borrowings are estimated using a discounted
cash flow calculation that applies the Company’s current borrowing rate from the FHLB. The carrying amount of variable
rate borrowings are reasonable estimates of fair value because they can be repriced frequently.

Off-Balance-Sheet Financial Instruments – The carrying amount for loan commitments, which are off-balance-sheet
financial instruments, approximates the fair value since the obligations are typically made with variable rates or have short
maturities.
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The carrying values and estimated fair values of the Company’s financial instruments are as follows:

December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017
Carrying Carrying 
Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value

Financial assets
Cash and due from banks $     4,270,786 $     4,270,786 $     3,841,594 $     3,841,594 
Federal funds sold 967,268 967,268 200,237 200,237 
Interest-bearing bank deposits 45,563,338 45,563,338 33,949,644 33,949,644 
Securities available for sale 21,197,881 21,197,881 22,143,557 22,143,557 
Federal Reserve Bank and Federal Home Loan Bank stock 1,780,800 1,780,800 1,902,500 1,902,500 
Loans Held for Sale 1,468,764 1,468,764 1,086,500 1,086,500 
Loans, net 285,405,029 276,801,776 246,177,399 241,695,978 
Bank owned life insurance 2,329,544 2,329,544 2,262,805 2,262,805 

Financial liabilities
Demand deposits, interest-bearing
    transaction and savings accounts 201,501,813 201,501,813 159,584,608 159,584,608 
Certificates of deposits 125,521,310 125,079,098 114,979,278 114,901,368 
Advances from Federal Home Loan Bank 6,000,000 6,002,113 10,000,000 10,001,112 

Notional Estimated Notional Estimated
Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value

Commitments to extend credit $   40,523,984 $ - $   34,944,713 $ -   
Standby letters of credit $        674,310 $ - $        244,063 $ -   

The fair value of a financial instrument is the amount at which the asset or obligation could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. Fair value estimates are made at a specific point
in time based on relevant market information and information about the financial instruments. Because no market value exists
for a significant portion of the financial instruments, fair value estimates are based on judgments regarding future expected loss
experience, current economic conditions, risk characteristics of various financial instruments, and other factors.

Assets and liabilities carried at fair value are classified in one of the following three categories based on a hierarchy for ranking
the quality and reliability of the information used to determine fair value:

Level 1 Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. Level 1 assets and liabilities include debt and
equity securities and derivative contracts that are traded in an active exchange market, as well as U.S. Treasury
Securities.

Level 2 Observable inputs other than Level 1 prices such as quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities; quoted prices in
markets that are not active; or other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market
data. Level 2 assets and liabilities include debt securities with quoted prices that are traded less frequently than
exchange-traded instruments, mortgage-backed securities, municipal bonds, corporate debt securities and
derivative contracts whose value is determined using a pricing model with inputs that are observable in the
market or can be derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data. This category generally
includes certain derivative contracts and impaired loans.

Level 3 Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are significant to the fair value of
the assets or liabilities. Level 3 assets and liabilities include financial instruments whose value is determined
using pricing models, discounted cash flow methodologies, or similar techniques, as well as instruments for
which the determination of fair value requires significant management judgment or estimation. For example,
this category generally includes certain private equity investments, retained residual interests in securitizations,
residential mortgage servicing rights, and highly-structured or long-term derivative contracts.
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Assets Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis.

Following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring
bases at December 31, 2018 and 2017, as well as the general classification of such instruments pursuant to the valuation
hierarchy.

Available for sale Securities

Investment securities available for sale are recorded at fair value on a recurring basis. Fair value measurement is based upon
quoted prices, if available. If quoted prices are not available, fair values are measured using independent pricing models or
other model-based valuation techniques such as the present value of future cash flows, adjusted for the security’s credit rating,
prepayment assumptions and other factors such as credit loss assumptions. 

Securities traded on an active exchange, such as the New York Stock Exchange, U.S. Treasury securities that are traded by
dealers or brokers in active over-the-counter markets and money market funds are considered highly liquid and are classified as
Level 1. Level 2 securities include mortgage-backed securities issued by government sponsored entities, municipal bonds and
corporate debt securities. Securities classified as Level 3 include asset-backed securities in less liquid markets.

Loans Held for Sale

Loans held for sale are carried at the lower of cost or market value. The fair value of mortgage loans held for sale are based on
commitments on hand from investors within the secondary market for loans with similar characteristics. As such, the fair value
of adjustments for mortgage loans held for sale is nonrecurring Level 2.

The following table presents the fair value of assets evaluated on a recurring basis as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 by level
within the hierarchy.

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
December 31, 2018
Small Business Administration (SBA) bonds $                   - $    3,430,149 $                   -
Municipal bonds -   1,972,953 -   
Collateralized mortgage obligations (CMOs) -   3,764,240 -   
Mortgage backed securities (MBS) -   12,030,539 -   
Loans held for sale -   1,468,764 -   
Total $                   - $  22,666,645 $                   -

December 31, 2017
Small Business Administration (SBA) bonds $                   - $    3,305,097 $                   -
Municipal bonds -   1,506,062 -   
Collateralized mortgage obligations (CMOs) -   3,226,117 -   
Mortgage backed securities (MBS) -   14,106,281 -   
Loans held for sale -   1,086,500 -   
Total $                   - $  23,230,057 $                   -

There were no other assets and no liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis at December 31, 2018 and 2017.
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Assets Measured at Fair Value on a Non-Recurring Basis

Impaired Loans

A loan is considered impaired when the full payment under the loan terms is not expected. Impaired loans are carried at the
present value of estimated future cash flows or the fair value of collateral. A portion of the allowance for loan losses is allocated
to impaired loans if the value of such loans is deemed to be less than the unpaid balance. Loan losses are charged against the
allowance when management believes the uncollectability of a loan is confirmed. When the fair value of the collateral is based
on an observable market price or current appraised value, the Company records the loan as nonrecurring Level 2. When an
appraised value is not available and there is no observable market price, the Company records the loan as nonrecurring Level 3.

Other Real Estate Owned (OREO)

OREO is carried at the lower of carrying value or fair value on a non-recurring basis. Fair value is based upon independent
appraisals or management’s estimation of the collateral and is considered a Level 3 measurement.

The following table presents the fair value of assets evaluated on a nonrecurring basis as of December 31, 2018 and 2017.

Value as of Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
December 31, 2018
Impaired Loans, net of specific reserve:

Real estate - mortgage $       499,937 $ - $ - $      499,937 
Real estate - other 1,445,163 -   -   1,445,163  

Total $    1,945,100 $                   - $                   - $   1,945,100 

December 31, 2017
Impaired Loans, net of specific reserve:

Real estate - mortgage $         27,452 $ - $ - $        27,452 
Real estate - other 1,526,184 -   -   1,526,184 

Other Real Estate Owned 88,513 -   -   88,513 
Total $    1,642,149 $                   - $                   - $   1,642,149 

There were no other assets and no liabilities measured at fair value as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 on a nonrecurring basis.

The following table presents quantitative information about level 3 fair value measurements for financial instruments measured
at fair value on a nonrecurring basis at December 31, 2018 and 2017.
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December 31, 2018 Valuation Techniques Unobservable Inputs
Impaired loans, net specific reserve

Real estate:
Real estate - mortgage $   499,937  Appraised Value Appraisals discounted for time and

market considerations, commissions,
and other holding and disposal costs

Real estate - other 1,445,163  Appraised Value Appraisals discounted for time and
market considerations, commissions,
and other holding and disposal costs

December 31, 2017 Valuation Techniques Unobservable Inputs
Impaired loans, net specific reserve

Real estate:
Real estate - mortgage $     27,452  Appraised Value Appraisals discounted for time and

market considerations, commissions,
and other holding and disposal costs

Real estate - other 1,526,184  Appraised Value Appraisals discounted for time and
market considerations, commissions,
and other holding and disposal costs

Other Real Estate Owned 88,513 Appraised Appraisals discounted for time and
Value/Comparison market considerations, commissions, 

Sales/Other Estimates and other holding and disposal costs

NOTE 20 – NET INCOME PER SHARE

Basic income per share is computed by dividing net income by the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding.
Diluted income per share is computed by dividing net income by the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding
and dilutive common share equivalents using the treasury stock method. Potential common shares are not included in the
denominator of the diluted per share computation when inclusion would be anti-dilutive. Therefore, basic income per share
and diluted earnings per share are reported to be the same.

NOTE 21 – REGULATORY MATTERS

Coastal Carolina Bancshares, Inc. and Coastal Carolina National Bank are subject to various regulatory capital requirements
administered by the federal banking agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory,
and possibly additional discretionary actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct adverse material effect on the
Company’s financial statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action,
the Company and Bank must meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of the Company and Bank’s
assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance-sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices. The Company and
Bank’s capital amounts and classifications are also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators about components, risk
weightings, and other factors.

For the Calendar Year
2018 2017

Net income to common shareholders $   2,115,471 $     323,732 
Weighted-average number of common shares outstanding 5,592,617 4,452,646 
Net income per share $            0.38 $           0.07
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Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Company and Bank to maintain
minimum ratios (set forth in the table below) of Tier 1, Common Equity Tier 1 (CET1), and total capital as a percentage of
assets and off-balance-sheet exposures, adjusted for risk-weights ranging from 0% to 150%. Tier 1 capital of the Company and
Bank consists of common stockholders’ equity, excluding the unrealized gain or loss on securities available for sale, minus
certain intangible assets, while CET1 is comprised of Tier 1 capital, adjusted for certain regulatory deductions and limitations.
Tier 2 capital consists of the allowance for loan losses subject to certain limitations. Total capital for purposes of computing the
capital ratios consists of the sum of Tier 1 and Tier 2 capital.

The Company and Bank are also required to maintain capital at a minimum level based on total assets, which is known as the
leverage ratio. Only the strongest banks are allowed to maintain capital at the minimum requirement of 3%. All others are
subject to maintaining ratios 1% to 2% above the minimum.

Effective March 31, 2015, quantitative measures established by applicable regulatory standards, including the newly
implemented Basel III revised capital adequacy standards and relevant provisions of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and
Consumer Protection Act (“Dodd Frank Act”), require the Bank to maintain (i) a minimum ratio of Tier 1 capital to average
total assets, after certain adjustments, of 4.00%, (ii) a minimum ratio of Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets of 6.00%, (iii) a
minimum ratio of total-capital to risk-weighted assets of 8.00% and (iv) a minimum ratio of CET1 to risk-weighted assets of
4.50%. A “well-capitalized” institution must generally maintain capital ratios 2% higher than the minimum guidelines.

In order to avoid restrictions on capital distributions or discretionary bonus payments to executives, the Company and Bank
will also be required to maintain a “capital conservation buffer” in addition to its minimum risk-based capital requirements.
This buffer will be required to consist solely of CET1, but the buffer will apply to all three risk-based measurements (CET1,
Tier 1 and total capital). The capital conservation buffer will be phased in incrementally over time, beginning January 1, 2016
and becoming fully effective on January 1, 2019, and will ultimately consist of an additional amount of Tier 1 capital equal to
2.5% of risk-weighted assets.

The following table summarizes the capital amounts and ratios of the Company and the Bank and the regulatory minimum
requirements at December 31, 2018 and 2017.
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To be Well-Capitalized
For Capital Under Prompt Corrective

December 31, 2018 Actual Adequacy Purposes Action Provisions
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

Coastal Carolina Bancshares, Inc.
CET1 capital (to risk weighted assets) $         40,227 14.16% $         12,787 4.5% $              N/A N/A 
Tier 1 capital (to risk weighted assets) 40,227 14.16% 17,049 6.0% N/A N/A 
Total capital (to risk weighted assets) 42,616 15.00% 22,732 8.0% N/A N/A 
Tier 1 capital (to total average assets) 40,227 10.78% 14,928 4.0% N/A N/A 

Coastal Carolina National Bank
CET1 capital (to risk weighted assets) 38,220 13.47% 12,769 4.5% 18,445 6.5%
Tier 1 capital (to risk weighted assets) 38,220 13.47% 17,026 6.0% 22,701 8.0%
Total capital (to risk weighted assets) 40,609 14.31% 22,701 8.0% 28,376 10.0%
Tier 1 capital (to total average assets) 38,220 10.27% 14,890 4.0% 18,613 5.0%

December 31, 2017
Coastal Carolina Bancshares, Inc.

CET1 capital (to risk weighted assets) $         37,735 15.05% $         11,279 4.5% $ N/A N/A 
Tier 1 capital (to risk weighted assets) 37,735 15.05% 15,039 6.0% N/A N/A 
Total capital (to risk weighted assets) 39,689 15.83% 20,052 8.0% N/A N/A 
Tier 1 capital (to total average assets) 37,735 11.81% 12,782 4.0% N/A N/A 

Coastal Carolina National Bank
CET1 capital (to risk weighted assets) 35,637 14.24% 11,262 4.5% 16,268 6.5%
Tier 1 capital (to risk weighted assets) 35,637 14.24% 15,017 6.0% 20,022 8.0%
Total capital (to risk weighted assets) 37,592 15.02% 20,022 8.0% 25,028 10.0%
Tier 1 capital (to total average assets) 35,637 11.23% 12,688 4.0% 15,861 5.0%
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NOTE 22 – CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION ON COASTAL CAROLINA BANCSHARES, INC.
(PARENT COMPANY ONLY)

The Parent Company’s condensed balance sheets and related condensed statements of operations and cash flows are as follows:

December 31,
2018 2017

Assets
Cash and non interest-bearing due from banks $   1,101,026 $   1,199,444 
Interest-bearing bank deposits 544,055 538,041 
Investment in bank subsidiary 42,405,896 40,385,802 
Other assets 378,634 369,995

Total assets $ 44,429,611 $ 42,493,282 

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Liabilities

Accrued expenses and other liabilities $        16,643 $       10,328
Total liabilities 16,643 10,328 

Shareholders’ Equity
Preferred stock - - 
Common stock 55,926 55,926 
Additional paid-in capital 46,431,086 46,431,086 
Unearned compensation, nonvested restricted stock - (8,719)
Retained deficit (1,726,134) (3,841,605)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (347,910) (153,734)

Total shareholders’ equity 44,412,968 42,482,954
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $ 44,429,611 $ 42,493,282 

CONDENSED BALANCE SHEETS
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CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

For the Calendar Year
2018 2017

Interest income
Interest-bearing bank deposits $ 6,014 $              (945) 

Total interest income 6,014 (945) 

Interest expense
Interest on borrowings - 108,312

Total interest expense - 108,312

Net interest expense 6,014 (109,257)

Noninterest expense
Professional services 24,268 37,399
Postage and supplies 663 673
Other 59,803 49,262

Total noninterest expense 84,734 87,334

Net loss before equity in earnings of bank subsidiary (78,720) (196,591)

Equity in earnings of bank subsidiary 2,205,552 663,620
Income tax expense 11,361 143,297

Net income $    2,115,471 $        323,732 

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Calendar Year
2018 2017

Operating activities
Net income $    2,115,471 $        323,732 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Equity in earnings of bank subsidiary (2,205,552) (663,620)
Increase in restricted stock - (23,250)
Decrease (increase) in accrued interest receivable and other assets (8,638) 144,969
(Payment of) proceeds from note payable - (4,500,000) 
(Decrease) increase in other liabilities 6,315 (193,269) 

Net cash provided by (used) in operating activities (92,404) (4,911,438) 

Investing activities
Net cash received in stock offering - 15,530,575 
Contribution to investment in bank - (10,000,000)

Net cash provided by operating activities - 5,530,575

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (92,404) 619,137
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 1,737,485 1,118,348
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $    1,645,081 $     1,737,485

Noncash investing activities:
Stock-based compensation expensed at bank subsidiary $           8,719 $          14,746
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NOTE 23 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the balance sheet date but before financial statements are issued.
Recognized subsequent events are events or transactions that provide additional evidence about conditions that existed at the
date of the balance sheet, including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing financial statements. Nonrecognized
subsequent events are events that provide evidence about conditions that did not exist at the date of the balance sheet but arose
after that date. Management has reviewed events occurring through March 20, 2019, the date the financial statements were
available to be issued and no subsequent events occurred requiring accrual or disclosure.
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